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Financial H|gh||ghtsl
B % 2

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZZ—RF %
Increase/
US$'000 Us$'000 (Decrease)
FEx FET #Z,/CR)

Operating Results ReEXxE
Revenue Wz 90,470 94,053 (3.8

EBITDA BRI - BIE
e REBHADR T 703 1,711 (58.9)

Operating profit 4R AL | 421 505 (16.6)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEHMN(BE) 254 (613)  N/ATEMA
Financial Position B AR
Total assets BEBT 59,366 59,880 0.9)
Cash and bank balances RN NMIRTTLEES 14,797 24,956 (40.7)
Net assets BEEE 40,660 40,944 0.7)
Financial Ratio B tE =
Current ratio (Times) BN (1) 1.8 (5.6)
Gearing ratio (%) BEARBELE %) - N/ATER
Dividends BE
Interim dividend per share (HK cents) S EIRR B (GBI

(Note) (Htat) 1.5 (8.0)
Final dividend per share (HK cents) BRARBRE CBI)

(Note) (Ki7) - N/ATER
Full year dividend per share (HK cents) 2 FRRE OBL)

(Note) (Kizt) 1.5 (8.0)
Note: Bt -
Dividend for the year ended 30 April 2016 was adjusted for the effect of Share BE_ZE—AFUA=+tHLFEZREER -Z—RFNA
Consolidation in September 2016. ‘M#Z%%f'ﬁﬁ T o
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Chairman’s Statement
FTERES

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors
("Directors”), | wish to present the annual results of
Daohe Global Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “Daohe Global”) for
the year ended 30 April 2017.

Reviewing the past year, the economy in the United
States ("US") has gradually stabilised but other major
economies around the world have not yet fully recovered,
which has presented challenges to our traditional
business in sourcing and supply chain management.
However, we have insisted on providing more value-
added services and expanding the product mix through
which we aim to solidify our relationship with our major
customers. Moreover, effective cost control measures
were also implemented. These efforts have helped us to
maintain stable development of our core businesses.

"Preserving existing businesses and then starting new
ones” has been our goal over the past two years. The
management team understands the importance of
exploring new prospects, so we have been closely
tracking potential projects in the market. While we
continue to develop our traditional business, we have
strived to look for unique opportunities. Therefore,
observing the immense potential in the proliferation of
gamified mobile social networking sector in China, we
have signed a share purchase agreement in February
2017 to acquire Duimian (¥ "), one of the largest
gamified mobile social networking platforms in China
that has an extensive and fast-growing user base. We are
delighted to see the completion of the acquisition on 1
June 2017. For the present, the Group will initially push
forward with the integration of the new business. We look
forward to Duimian’s contribution in the near future.

Looking ahead, as the external environment is expected
to remain uncertain and the recovery of developed
countries continues to be sluggish, the prospects for the
global economy in the coming year would not appear
overly optimistic. However China’s gross domestic
product (GDP) figures indicate economic stability in the
months ahead, thus we believe that the China market
offers better room for development. As such, Daohe
Global's management team will closely monitor the
changes in the market and proactively and flexibly
formulate our strategy and initiate appropriate action.
Internally, we will allocate resources to those projects
with greater development potential while continuing to
support the development of our core businesses.
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Externally, we will continue to strengthen our relationship
with customers through diversifying our product portfolio
and providing more comprehensive value-added services,
as well as exploring wider markets and sources to lower
the cost of procurement. Meanwhile, we will devote
efforts in parallel to develop the supply chain
management business and the gamified mobile social
networking business. We will also evaluate acquisition or
investment opportunities in these two areas, with the aim
of bringing the best returns to our shareholders.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my heartfelt gratitude and appreciation to the
Board, our management team and staff for their
contributions and dedication to their work. On behalf of
Daohe Global, | would also like to extend my sincerest
thanks to our shareholders, business partners and
customers for their unflagging support.

Zhou Xijian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 July 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE R wm M AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

The business environment remained frail during the year under
review, the Group continued to be affected by weakened
demand, fierce competition, price and margin pressure from
customers lowering retail prices and also political instability.
The Group’s overall shipment dropped by approximately 8.3%
from approximately US$217.4 million (equivalent to HK$1,691.4
million) last year to approximately US$199.3 million (equivalent
to HK$1,550.6 million) this year.

Revenue decreased by approximately 3.8% to approximately
US$90.5 million (equivalent to HK$704.1 million) this year from
approximately US$94.1 million (equivalent to HK$732.1 million)
last year.

Gross profit dropped by around 6.1% from approximately
US$23 million (equivalent to HK$178.9 million) last year to
approximately US$21.6 million (equivalent to HK$168 million)
this year.

General and administrative expenses for the year were down by
6.2% to approximately US$20.9 million (equivalent to HK$162.6
million), compared to approximately US$$22.3 million (equivalent
to HK$173.5 million) last year.

For the year ended 30 April 2017, profit of approximately US$0.3
million (equivalent to HK$2.3 million) was achieved. The Group
reported loss of approximately US$0.6 million (equivalent to
HK$4.7 million) last year, mainly attributable to the impairment
loss of approximately US$0.9 million (equivalent to HK$7 million)
on goodwill of EYITHHERE R EEEER A A (Shenzhen
Guo Cai Sheng Tang Investment Co. Ltd.*) (“Guo Cai Sheng
Tang”) and an additional tax provision of approximately
US$632,000 (equivalent to HK$4.9 million) for the Hong Kong
Tax Case.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Operating Segmentation

The Group's business comprises three operating segments: (i)
provision of services including procurement and value-added
services relating to the procurement agency business; (ii) sales
of merchandise including garments, fashion accessories,
hardgoods and labels; and (iii) money lending business.

()&(ii) Provision of services and sales of merchandise

IR E R W MDA
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Shipment value
For the year ended 30 April

HEEHE
BENA=1THILEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF T REF
US$’ million US$’ million
BEER BEXET
I . .
Provision of services R RS 136.4
Sales of merchandise EmiEE 81.0
Total &5t 217.4

During the year under review, shipment value for provision
of services fell by approximately 11.7% to approximately
US$120.5 million (equivalent to HK$937.5 million),
accounting for roughly 60.5% of the Group's total
shipment value. This was mainly due to decline in business
from Europe.

Shipment value for sales of merchandise also decreased
by approximately 2.7% to approximately US$78.8 million
(equivalent to HK$613.1 million), making up around 39.5%
of the Group's total shipment value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR E R W Mo AT

Geographical Analysis

Hh 1 5 A7

Shipment value
For the year ended 30 April

HEERE
BEZNA=1THLEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
US$’ million US$' million
BEER BAEETT
I Y .
North America b =M 105.7
Europe M 50.9
Others HAi 60.8
Total A&t 217.4

During the year under review, shipments to North America
dropped slightly by approximately 1.2% to approximately
US$104.4 million (equivalent to HK$812.2 million).
Nevertheless, North America remained the largest market
of the Group, contributing approximately 52.4% of the
Group's total shipment value.

Shipments to Europe decreased by approximately 21.2%
to approximately US$40.1 million (equivalent to HK$312
million) mainly due to the decline of business from the
United Kingdom. Shipments to Europe presently account
for approximately 20.1% of the Group's total shipment
value.

Shipments grouped under “Others”, comprising mainly
shipments to the southern hemisphere, decreased by
approximately 9.9% to approximately US$54.8 million
(equivalent to HK$426.3 million) due to the decline of
business from South Africa as a result of continued
depreciation of the South African Rand. “Other”
represented approximately 27.5% of the Group's total
shipment value.

O'I O Daohe Global Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(i) Money lending business
In May 2016, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Tingo Consulting Company Limited ("Tingo”)
which holds a Money Lenders Licence issued under the
Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Law of
Hong Kong). On 15 November 2016, Tingo entered into a
loan agreement (“Loan Agreement”) with ZEE (ZHENG
Lianjun*) ("Borrower”), who is a businessman, and Xin Kai
He Trading Co., Limited (“Guarantor”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. Pursuant to the Loan
Agreement, Tingo agreed to provide a loan in the
principal amount of US$6,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$46,680,000) to the Borrower subject to and upon the
terms and conditions thereof. The loan carries interest at
9.5% per annum and Tingo generated corresponding
interest income of approximately US$0.2 million
(equivalent to HK$1.6 million) during the year under

review.

Hong Kong Tax Case

As at the date of this annual report, the Group received
protective assessments amounting to approximately
HK$173,000,000 (equivalent to US$22,237,000) from the Inland
Revenue Department in Hong Kong (“IRD") in respect of
queries on the modus operandi of the Group and the
chargeability of the profits for the assessment years from
2003/2004 to 2010/2011. Objections have been lodged by the
Group against the protective assessments. In addition, Tax
Reserve Certificates amounting to HK$5,250,000 (equivalent to
US$675,000) have been purchased by two subsidiaries of the
Company in pursuit of the holdover of tax demanded under
protective assessments for those years.

In April 2015, with the assistance of an external tax specialist,
the Group submitted a settlement proposal as part of
negotiation with the IRD in relation to this case. Subsequent to
the submission to the IRD, the Group kept close dialogue with
the IRD and understood that the IRD required additional
evidence from the Group to further assess the tax position. At
the close of the year end, the case was still under negotiation
with the IRD. Despite the unknown outcome, the Group is of
the view that sufficient tax provisions have been made in the
financial statements based on the information available.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR E R W Mo AT

Financial Review

The Group's financial position remained healthy with cash and
cash equivalents of approximately US$14.8 million (equivalent
to HK$115.1 million) as at 30 April 2017. In addition, the Group
had total banking facilities of approximately US$10.3 million
(equivalent to HK$80 million) including borrowing facilities of
approximately US$0.1 million (equivalent to HK$0.8 million) as
at 30 April 2017.

The Group's current ratio was approximately 1.7 and had zero
gearing, based on no interest-bearing borrowings and total
equity of approximately US$40.7 million (equivalent to HK$316.6
million) as at 30 April 2017.

On 21 March 2017, the Group entered into a loan agreement
with a director of the Company, pursuant to which the director
agreed to provide a loan facility to the Group in an aggregate
amount of US$10 million (equivalent to HK$77.8 million) to
finance the acquisition of Loovee Holdings Inc. (“Loovee”) and
possible future acquisition. The loan is unsecured, interest free
and repayable in full on the first anniversary from the date of
drawdown or such later date to be agreed. Subsequent to year
end, a loan of approximately US$3.9 million (equivalent to
HK$30 million) was drawn down by the Group.

Trade receivables increased from approximately US$4.4 million
(equivalent to HK$34.2 million) as at 30 April 2016 to
approximately US$5.4 million (equivalent to HK$42 million) as at
30 April 2017. Gross trade receivables aged over 90 days, which
amounted to approximately US$1.8 million (equivalent to HK$14
million), are being carefully monitored by management and
sufficient provision has been made.

The Group had a loan receivable of US$6 million (equivalent to
HK$46.68 million) as at 30 April 2017 which was subsequently
repaid on 30 June 2017.

The Group's net asset value recorded as at 30 April 2017 was
approximately US$40.7 million (equivalent to HK$316.6 million).

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 30 April
2017, and no material change has been identified since then.

The majority of the Group's transactions during the year under
review were denominated in US dollar and Hong Kong dollar.
To minimise exchange risks, sales and purchases are generally
transacted in the same currency.

O’I 2 Daohe Global Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CORPORATE EVENTS DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Acquisition of a Money Lending Business

On 18 May 2016, Dache Capital Limited, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Tingo (together with
an outstanding shareholder’s loan of HK$100,000) at an
aggregate consideration of HK$420,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$54,000). Tingo is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and is a holder of a Money
Lenders Licence issued under the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The acquisition was
completed on 19 May 2016.

On 15 November 2016, Tingo entered into the Loan Agreement
as lender with ZfE§E (ZHENG Lianjun*) as borrower. Details of
the Loan Agreement is disclosed in the paragraph headed
“Segmental Analysis” above in this annual report. The Loan
Agreement is conducted in the ordinary and usual course of
business of Tingo which will provide interest income to the
Group.

Proposed Placing of New Shares under General
Mandate and the Lapse of the Placing Agreement

On 5 June 2016, the Company entered into the placing
agreement ("Placing Agreement”) with the placing agent
whereby the Company conditionally agreed to place, through
the placing agent, on a best effort basis, 690,620,000 new shares
of the Company to not less than six independent placees at the
placing price of HK$0.42 per placing share pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement. The Company
announced on 4 July 2016 that due to the reasons disclosed
therein, the Placing Agreement lapsed. The Directors were of
the view that the lapse of the Placing Agreement has no
material adverse impact on the business operation and financial
position of the Group. For details, please refer to the
Company'’s announcements dated 5 June 2016 and 4 July 2016.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR E R W Mo AT

Acquisition of a Company Established in the People's
Republic of China (“PRC")

On 7 July 2016, &Y B E R B PR A 7] (Shenzhen Sheng Yun
Technology Co. Ltd.*) (“Sheng Yun"), a subsidiary of the
Company, acquired a 51% interest in an aggregate of RMB1 in
RIYNE 2z B EE IR T HE RIS AR 2 F (Shenzhen Guo Zhi
Dao New Energy Vehicle Sales Services Co. Ltd.*) ("Guo Zhi
Dao”). Guo Zhi Dao is a company incorporated in the PRC on
11 May 2016 with limited liability and has an unpaid registered
capital of RMB10 million. For details of the acquisition, please
refer to the Company’s 2016 annual report published on 27 July
2016. As at the date of this report, Guo Zhi Dao has not
commenced any business.

Lapse of an Option to Acquire an Equity Interest and
a Connected Transaction regarding a Disposal

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, M2 & s B#E7
(&I AR AT (Linmark Merchandise Consultancy (Shenzhen)
Limited*) (“SZ Linmark"”) owned a 60% equity interest in Guo
Cai Sheng Tang after completion of the acquisition from J&3II|TT
Bl E1 E B AR A7) (Shenzhen Guocai Lixin Investment
Management Company Limited*) (“Lixin”) and R 3 £ (Wu
Yuejun*) (“Mr. Wu") which took place on 25 November 2015.

The Company announced on 10 August 2016 that due to the
reasons disclosed therein, the Board considered that a disposal
of the 60% equity interest in Guo Cai Sheng Tang would allow
the Group to exit from subsidising the nonperforming business
of Guo Cai Sheng Tang having considered Guo Cai Sheng Tang
had been loss-making since its incorporation; and SZ Linmark
had decided not to exercise its option to acquire the remaining
40% equity interest in Guo Cai Sheng Tang (“Second Tranche
Sale Interest”).

Accordingly, SZ Linmark, Lixin and Mr. Wu had entered into a
disposal agreement on 10 August 2016 ("Disposal
Agreement”) for the disposal of an aggregate of 60% equity
interests in Guo Cai Sheng Tang (of which 30.6% equity interests
would be transferred to Lixin and 29.4% equity interests would
be transferred to Mr. Wu) (“Disposal”) at an aggregate
consideration of HK$5,000,000 (of which HK$2,550,000 would be
payable by Lixin and HK$2,450,000 would be payable by Mr.
Wu).

*  For identification purpose only

O’I 4 Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

WE—XEPEARHENE ([HE] KL
NS
RZE—RFLALH KRR —RWERRRF
JBEERBERAR(BE) LNEGRHARE 1T
IR 2 B ae IR T B S E RS BRR AR ([ B
2B %D - BIZER—RRZZE—RF
AA+—BEABEEMKIZBERETRR &
fit & " & AR # 10,000,000 T (REH) - BRI
BEEFAS #2HAQFR_ZE—X~FLA
“tHHFEN T -AFER - HEAREH
B B BN R FIR AR o

WEREZREEANREBLESENE
BEX5
R-ZZE-—RAF+t—AZTHBBERRIITE
RIGREEBARQB(IED RRAZ(TR
REDWRER  ARB—RE2EMBRRME
BamiE S CRIDBRAR (RYIKE]) HE
BIERRE 60% IR HE -

ARBINZF—A"ENBTRHRM  AREFRAH
BREOREA - ZEEERREBEMAIAR—
BERNEBE E22RRLEBRRRE60%KE
BASAEEREBBBERRERRREZES
ERYIMEDRENTEERBERRESRT
40% ik ([ B ERE ) 2R ER -

Eit - RIIME - UEEIREERZZT—FREN
ATHILHERA(HEBE])  LERE
5,000,000 % 7t ( H # 2,550,000 7% 7T % B 37 12 2 1+t
12,450,000 L AR EAEZN) HERBIHER
EA 0% HE(HE AP 30.6% B EEE T (=&
29.4% PR T RuE)([HESHE]) -

* EHRES



Management Discussion and Analysis

Guo Cai Sheng Tang was a subsidiary of the Company and was
owned as to 20.4% by Lixin and as to 19.6% by Mr. Wu. Lixin
and Mr. Wu were therefore connected persons of the Company
at the subsidiary level under Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Disposal constituted a connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules, the Disposal was
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but
exempt from the circular, independent financial advice and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Furthermore, Lixin is 70%-owned by the spouse of Mr. ZHANG
Li, a former director of the Company who resigned on 12 July
2016. As such, Lixin was an associate of Mr. ZHANG Li and thus
a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Disposal
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details including lapse of the option to acquire the Second
Tranche Sale Interest and the Disposal were disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 26 October 2015, 3
November 2015, 24 November 2015, 25 November 2015, 13
May 2016 and 10 August 2016.

Share Consolidation and Change of Board Lot Size
During the year under review, the Board issued a circular to the
Company'’s shareholders dated 8 September 2016 proposing (i)
that the share consolidation on the basis that every ten (10)
issued and unissued then-existing shares of US$0.004 each in
the share capital of the Company be consolidated into one (1)
consolidated share of US$0.04 (“Share Consolidation”); and (ii)
subject to the Share Consolidation becoming effective, that the
board lot size for trading on the Stock Exchange be changed
from 10,000 then-existing shares to 1,000 consolidated shares.

The Share Consolidation was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 26 September 2016. The Share Consolidation became
effective on 27 September 2016 and the board lot size of
trading on the Stock Exchange had been changed from 10,000
shares to 1,000 consolidated shares.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR E R W Mo AT

Termination of a Connected Transaction

With respect to the connected transaction in relation to the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong
Wing Yue Asset Management Limited (“Transaction”)
announced on 2 December 2015 and 22 January 2016, original
commercial intent and expectations of the parties to the
Transaction (“Parties”) no longer hold due to changes in the
business environment and strategy of the Parties. The Parties
agreed to terminate the Transaction and entered into a
memorandum of termination to terminate the Transaction on 10
November 2016.

Pursuant to the memorandum of termination, the Parties shall
release and discharge each other from all performances,
liabilities, sum of money, actions, proceedings, accounts, claims
and demands in any form whatsoever in relation to the
Transaction. In view of the aforesaid reason, the Board
considered that the termination of the Transaction is in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

No consideration for the Transaction has been paid and the
Board considered the termination of the Transaction shall have
no material adverse impact on the existing business operation
and financial position of the Group as a whole.

REMUNERATION POLICY AND STAFF
DEVELOPMENT SCHEME

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had 345 employees (2016: 361).
Total staff costs for the year under review amounted to
approximately US$14.3 million (equivalent to HK$111.3 million)
(2016: US$15 million (equivalent to HK$116.7 million)). The
Group offers competitive remuneration schemes to its
employees based on industry practices, as well as the
performance of the individual employee and the Group. In
addition, the Company has adopted a share options scheme for
eligible persons and discretionary bonuses are payable to staff
based on his or her individual performance and that of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

The apparel industry is expected to face a challenging business
environment in the coming year, impacted by a global economy
that will itself be vulnerable to various vagaries. Consequently,
the industry will be confronted with a mixture of intensifying
volatility, uneven growth and lackluster demand. Furthermore,
the rise of internet shopping and popularity of fast retailing are
trends that will continue to affect sales of traditional brands and
retailers, resulting in excess inventory.

The Group will therefore fortify ties with its key customers by
developing an even more diversified product portfolio and by
providing a more comprehensive range of value-added services.
In addition, the Group will explore new customers and business
opportunities in the sourcing and supply chain management
businesses, as well as in the gamified mobile social networking
industry for realising long-term growth.

Subsequent to the year under review, the Group acquired
Duimian (“ ¥ "), one of the largest gamified mobile social networking
platforms in the PRC with a rapidly growing and highly engaged
user base. The acquisition was completed on 1 June 2017. The
closing share price of the Company on the completion date
increased to HK$7.27 and the fair value of the purchase
consideration for Duimian was increased to approximately
HK$1,190,500,000 (equivalent to US$153,021,000) accordingly. It
is expected that the Group will make a non-cash impairment
loss in the next reporting period, for details, please refer to the
paragraph headed "Events after the reporting period —
Acquisition of a gamified mobile social networking platform in
the PRC" on pages 76 to 77.

In spite of the one off non-cash loss as aforementioned, the
Group is consolidating this new business with the aim of
bringing contributions to the Company in the near future. The
management is confident in Duimian’s ability to tap the
gamified mobile social networking industry in the PRC, which
possesses immense potential as suggested by a report from
Analysys International, the independent market research firm
having estimated that the market will achieve a compound
annual growth rate of 147.1% from 2014 to 2018.

Going forward, the Group will primarily utilise resources for
bolstering the traditional sourcing and supply chain
management businesses, as well as for developing the newly
acquired gamified mobile social networking business. Besides
such investments, the management will closely monitor market
developments and remain receptive to potential investment
opportunities that enable the Group to deliver optimal returns
to its shareholders.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SEENSREEEER

Non-executive Director

Mr. ZHOU Xijian, aged 42, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company and the chairman of the Board on 5
February 2015. Mr. Zhou has over 20 years of business
experience. He is the president of ERBMIEEEXEEFR
‘A7) (Guangdong Daohe Investment Industrial Group Co., Ltd*)
("Guangdong Daohe Group"”). Guangdong Daohe Group is a
multi-industry company which is engaged in a wide range of
businesses including but not limited to liquor, drinking water,
film and television, catering and internet technology. Mr. Zhou
completed a postgraduate programme in Management and
business administration from the Business School of Nanjing
Normal University in 2011,

Executive Directors and senior management

Mr. ZHANG Qi, aged 42, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company and the chief executive officer of the
Group on 5 February 2015. Mr. Zhang has over 17 years of
business experience, and is currently the chief executive of our
affiliated company Guangdong Daohe Investment Industrial
Group Co., Ltd (“Guangdong Daohe Group”). Guangdong
Daohe Group invests in various business realms including
catering industry, culture and sport industry, general aviation,
film and entertainment industry, new energy market, mobile
internet and E-Commerce, simultaneously, Guangdong Daoche
Group also focuses on investing in diverse industries including
health care, health service, health tourism, amusement and
recreation. Mr. Zhang completed a postgraduate programme in
Management and business administration from Business School
of Nanjing Normal University in 2011.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors and senior management (continued)

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, aged 47, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2010. Mr.
Wong has been the president of the Group since 5 February
2015. He was the chief financial officer of the Group from
January 2006 to January 2017. Prior to that, Mr. Wong was the
head of corporate development department of a Greater China
based supply chain management solutions provider and
consumer products distributor, primarily responsible for
business development, mergers and acquisitions and investor
relations activities. Previously, Mr. Wong had worked at several
major international financial institutions where he gained
extensive experience in finance, investments and banking. Mr.
Wong holds a Master of Business Administration degree in
finance from Boston University in the US, and a Bachelor of
Science degree from The University of British Columbia in
Canada.

Mr. ZHANG Jifeng, aged 47, was appointed as an executive
director and a member of the executive committee of the Board
of the Company on 11 January 2017.

Mr. Zhang is currently the fund manager of FfBe R XL E &
(Zhongheng e-Film Culture Fund*). He is specialised in planning
and operation of film and TV investment and industrial town for
film and TV culture. He graduated from /¥ HEE ERERK
(Shanghai News Broadcasting Television School*), specialising in
news editing.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EELEREERBEN

Executive Directors and senior management (continued)

Prior to Mr. Zhang's appointment with R Be g i X (£ & &
(Zhongheng e-Film Culture Fund*), he had been the general
manager of 1t 7R & B & % % & B R 2 & (Beijing Aojinyuan
Real Estate & Development Pty. Ltd.*). Formerly, he was the
deputy general manager of 5/& R E AR A 7] (E-House (China)
Holdings Limited*), general manager of its Shenyang branch,
deputy general manager of its Beijing branch and deputy
general manager of its Northern China branch; the deputy
general manager of /8 5 [ #§ & A [R 2 & (Shanghai Real
Estate Sales Co., Limited*), the predecessor of ZEH B AR A
A] (E-House (China) Holdings Limited®); the strategic consultant
of tETHLZREERARBENREHZE S
(commercialization promotional committee of West Nanjing
Road, Jing'an District in Shanghai); senior strategic manager of
Shanghai branch of Midland Realty; strategic manager of
Shanghai branch of BEFETEHEBE AR A A (Lee Tat
Property Consultant Limited*); and member of _£/8T A5 @
B E#t kB BB 7 & T E/NE (Working Group for Pilot
Management of First Tranche of Domestic Commodity Housing
in Shanghai City*) (the representative of EETEEX ZREREM
¥ (Shanghai Housing Trade and Exhibition Market*)).

Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in circulation, sales
and operation of real estate. In 1993, he participated in the work
of FEAHERERERBR(ZRB) AMER MR E
i & /)N #H (drafting committee of Pilot Management Measures
on Purchase of Property with Secured Loans (Mortgage) with
Domestic Commodity in Shanghai*), which marked the
beginning of the real estate financial business. He has extensive
experience in management and operation of listed real
estate businesses specialising in services. He also has working
experience in the development and operation of comprehensive
industrial chain of film culture.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, aged 56, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since 22
April 2002. Mr. Wang is a managing director of 698 Capital
Limited, a private Asian investment firm. Previously, Mr. Wang
was also a board and audit committee member of NASDAQ
listed Homeinns Hotel Group, one of China’s leading hotel
chains. Mr. Wang was a member of the board and chief
executive officer of GigaMedia Limited, a NASDAQ listed
online entertainment and game provider. Mr. Wang was also
previously a co-founder and executive director of KGI Asia
Limited, an investment bank and securities brokerage. Mr.
Wang has also served on the board of directors of several
finance and technology companies in the region and was
previously a member of the board and audit committee chair of
Softbank Investment International (Strategic) Limited (now
known as China Renji Medical Group Limited), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Wang received his Juris Doctorate
degree from Yale Law School and practised corporate and
securities law in Hong Kong and New York. He also holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of California at Los
Angeles in the US.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EELEREERBEN

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LAU Shu Yan, aged 35, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company and the chairman of the
audit committee of the Board on 11 January 2017.

Mr. Lau is currently a partner of an audit firm. He had previously
worked in an international accounting firm and has over 10 years
of experience in finance, auditing and accounting fields. Mr. Lau
is currently an independent non-executive director of Union
Asia Enterprise Holdings Limited (stock code: 8173) and J#JIITH
B 2E B2 B IR 1) B R 2 Al (Shenzhen Mingwah Aohan High
Technology Corporation Limited*) (stock code:8301), the
securities of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also an
independent non-executive director, chairman of the audit
committee and member of the remuneration committee of
Perfectech International Holdings Limited (stock code: 765), the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau
graduated from University of Newcastle upon Tyne, United
Kingdom with a Bachelor of Arts degree majoring in accounting
and financial analysis. He is a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lau was formerly an independent non-executive director of
Evershine Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as TLT
Lottotainment Group Limited) (stock code: 8022) from 11 July
2012 to 16 January 2014, the securities of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. ZHANG Huijun, aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company, a member of each of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Board on 11 January 2017.

Mr. Zhang is currently a vice-chairman of each of China Film
Association, Beijing Film Specialist Association and 3t R &7 £
filt =X % & (Beijing Film and TV Artist Association*), deputy
director of China Council for the Promotion of Art Education, a
tutor and professor of the Academy of Chinese Culture under
Peking University, director of /1 Bl & & = ¥ £ 117 #f 7% b (China
Research Institute of Film Technology*), vice chairman and
standing member of the council of China Society of Motion
Picture and Television Engineers, member of each of the
Academic Degree Committee of the State Council and National
Art Professional Master Degree Education Steering Committee
under the Ministry of Education. He is also a member of BIZR#
EmEEREZEHYE L1EZL B g (Committee of Quality
Education in Higher Education Institutions under the Ministry of
Education*), head of the higher education division under the
Education Committee of China Photographers Association,
principal specialist of Beijing Film and Television Art Research
Centre, vice-president of China Advertising Association of
Commerce and a specialist enjoying special government
subsidies granted by the State Council. Mr. Zhang is also a tutor
to doctoral students and a professor of Beijing Film Academy in
which he was enrolled in 1978 (Class 78) as a student under the
department of photography and graduated with a bachelor of
arts (cinematography) degree in July 1982. In the same year, he
assumed a teaching post at his alma mater shortly after
graduating with flying colours.

Mr. Zhang was a member of the national committee of the 10th
and 11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
("CPPCC"), a member of the 10th and 11th CPPCC Subcommittee
of Education, Science, Culture, Health and Sports, as well as a
specially invited supervisor of the Ministry of Public Security. He
has acted as the deputy director of Beijing Film Academy for 8
years and the director of Beijing Film Academy for 14 years.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EELEREERBEN

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Zhang was accredited the 12 75 1§ & #{ £ #€ (Outstanding
Tutor Award*) at the 99 % B K £ A4 £ fi7 &5 (Arts Festival for
University Students Across China 1999*) co-hosted by the
Ministry of Education, Ministry of Culture, Central Committee of
the Communist Youth League of China, State Administration of
Radio, Film and Television and the Beijing Municipal
Government. He was conferred EAFICE Z 2B E(ZHEE)
(Commendatore dell’Ordine della Stella della Solidarieta
Italiana (3rd Class)) by the president of the Italian Republic in
recognition of his positive contribution to the promotion of
cultural exchange and friendly cooperation between the PRC
and ltaly. Being the awardee of FEIX (L EZE AT EE KR ER
K #&(Award of Special Contribution to the Nurture of Talents
for Cultural Industries of China*) by the organizing committee
of Forum on International Cultural Industries (China), Mr. Zhang
has been engaged as a life member of the judging committee
of Macau International Movie Festival.

Being a famous cinematographer, director, producer in the PRC,
as well as a "fifth generation” leading figure of the PRC's movie
industry, Mr. Zhang has involved himself in the production of over
20 movies, making enormous artistic achievement and winning
numerous prestigious awards at home and abroad. Besides, Mr.
Zhang has presented over 300 TV productions, including drama
series and other genres, in the capacity of director,
cinematographer, organiser and producer. He has written,
compiled and undertaken over 20 academic papers. He has
undertaken research projects of state and provincial level covering
the aspects of science, education and technology as a project
leader or principal participant.

*  For identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate Governance Code ("CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities ("Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as the Corporate
Governance Code (“Code”) of the Company. The Board is
committed to complying with the Code to the extent that the
Directors consider it to be applicable to the Company and
suited to the needs and interests of the Group.

The corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise
an effective Board, sound internal controls, appropriate
independence policy, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company.

Throughout the year ended 30 April 2017, the Company has
complied with all the applicable Code Provisions of the CG
Code to the Listing Rules, save for the deviations discussed in
the relevant paragraphs below.

(A) DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code") set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
model code for securities transactions by the Directors.

The Company, having made specific enquiries, obtained
confirmations from all the Directors that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 30 April 2017.

The Company has also established written guidelines on
no less exacting terms than the Model Code ("Employees
Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by
relevant employees who are likely to possess unpublished
inside information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

No incident of non-compliance with the Employees
Written Guidelines by the relevant employees was noted
by the Company during the year ended 30 April 2017.
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(B) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (B) EEE

Board Composition

The Board currently has seven Directors comprising three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Directors give sufficient time and attention to the
Company's affairs. The Company requests the Directors
to disclose annually to the Company the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitments.

Independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Director provide the Board with diversified skills, expertise
and experience. Their views and participation in Board
and committee meetings bring independent, constructive
and informed comments on issues relating to the
Company'’s strategies and policies to ensure that the
interests of all shareholders are taken into account.

An updated list of the Directors identifying their roles and
functions is maintained on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. Independent non-executive Directors
are identified as such in all corporate communications
containing the name of the Directors.

Mr. ZHOU Xijian and Mr. ZHANG Qi are business partners
and are directors and shareholders of Daohe Global
Investment Holding Limited ("Daohe Global Investment”),
a controlling shareholder of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, none of the members of the Board has
any relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s)) with each other.

Board Diversity

The Company has already adopted a board diversity
policy (the "Board Diversity Policy”) on 30 August 2013
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

The Company considers diversity as a wide concept and
believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural background,
educational background and professional experience. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, in the
context of the skills and experience of the Board as a
whole requires to be effective. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate will bring to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee of the Company will monitor
the achievement of the measurable objectives set out in
the Board Diversity Policy and review the same as
appropriate to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on directors’ and officers’ liabilities of the
Company and its subsidiaries in respect of any legal
actions taken against the Directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate
activities.

Delegation by the Board

The overall management of the Company’s business is
vested in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for
the leadership and control of the Group and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All Directors
should make decisions objectively in the best interests of
the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly
or through Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a
position to exercise its powers in an informed manner,
management provides monthly management accounts
and updates to the Directors who also have full and timely
access to all relevant information and may take
independent professional advice if necessary.
Furthermore, the types of decisions to be delegated by
the Board to management include implementation of the
strategy and direction determined by the Board, operation
of the Group’s businesses, preparation of financial
statements and operating budgets, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

To comply with the requirement under the CG Code, the
Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the year, the Board meets
regularly for reviewing and approving the financial and
operating performance, the compliance of CG Code and
corporate governance report, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company.
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The Company currently has four Board committees. The
table below provides membership information of these
committees on which each Board member serves.

Board Committees

E2ZE8 Executive Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee
= HiTZ8E ENEES FWEES REZES
| | | | |
Non-executive Director FHTES
ZHOU Xijian (Chairman) AHH(XE) C
Executive Directors HTEE
ZHANG Qi R (THEH) M
(Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEF(8H)
(President)
ZHANG Jifeng R
(Appointed on 11 January 2017) (R=ZF—tF—A1+—REZH)
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
WANG Avrthur Minshiang B ¢ M C M
LAU Shu Yan 2A C
(Appointed on 11 January 2017) (R=ZF—tF—A1+—REZH)
ZHANG Huijun REE M M M
(Appointed on 11 January 2017) (R=ZF—tF—A1+—REZH)
Ex-Directors AEE
HWANG Hau-zen, Basil BER
(Former name: HWANG Han-Lung, (REEZE)
Basil) (Resigned on 11 January 2017) (R=F—+F—F1+—AFHL)
HENG Victor Ja Wei i M
(Appointed on 11 August 2016 and (R=ZF—NF/\AT—REZHF
resigned on 11 January 2017) VRZF—+E—[+—HFE)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius MEDT C M M
(Resigned on 21 December 2016) (R=F-—NE+-H-1—HET)
WONG Chak Keung HER M
(Resigned on 11 August 2016) (R=ZF—ANFENAT—AFE)
ZHANG Li A
(Resigned on 12 July 2016) (RZF—NFLAT=AFF)
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS  Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS M

(Ceased to act on 5 May 2016)

(R=F—FRARATBEFEE)

Notes:
C Chairman of the relevant Board committees
M Member of the relevant Board committees
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Board Meetings and Committees Meetings
The attendance of individual Directors at the Board and
its committee meetings, the annual general meeting
("AGM") and special general meeting held during the
year ended 30 April 2017 is set out in the following table:
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n

SEREESES
EERHRBE_T—tHENA=THILHF
ERTHNEFRGRHER
REARBRFRIAREHBEREHTIN T &

B AW

Bges WRREF

I Y N N N N
Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEE/EERE
Executive Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual Special
Board Committee Committee Committee ~ Committee General General
Name of Directors ESf? Meeting ~ Meeting  Meeting ~ Meeting ~ Meeting ~ Meeting  Meeting
iS¢ 4GEEE FAERE FRERE R4ZA® BR ER
g% #3 &3 8% % EEAE 4K
[ N R S S N R N R
Non-executive Director FHTES
ZHOU Xijian BEk 25 NATEE  NATEER  NATER o1 1" o1
Executive Directors yEs
ZHANG Qi pest 55 11 NARER 1n /1 17n 0n
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EEE 55 11 0 /1 N N 11
ZHANG Jifeng M FBIE ML N 01 NATER 1N N NATER NATER
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang Ia# 45 NANER 22 171 17 0/1 0N
LAU Shy Yan M= Bz \ 2 a1 NAMEE  NAMEE  NATNER  NATER  NATEE  NATER
ZHANG Huijun (3 EeF Y N NATER  NATER n 1 NATNER  NATER
Ex-Directors HES
HWANG Hau-zen, Basil "4 BR e Y4 NATER 2 NANER  NAMER 17 17
HENG Victor Ja Wei "¢ bt 33 NATER N NARER  NATER il 11
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius Mete? EEZRED 3 NANER 202 NAMER  NATER 11 1
WONG Chak Keung M=? BER M 1M NATER 171 NATNER  NATER  NATER  NATER
ZHANG Lj =8 Rz NATER NATER NAMER NANER NATER NATER  NAMER
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS M=% Jakob Jacobus Koert NARER  NANER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
TULLENERS %9
Number of meetings held SENETRY 5 1 2 1 1 1 1
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Notes:

Mr. ZHANG Jifeng was appointed as an executive Director and a
member of Executive Committee on 11 January 2017.

Mr. LAU Shu Yan was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of Audit Committee on 11 January 2017.

Mr. ZHANG Huijun was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee on 11 January 2017.

Mr. HWANG Hau-zen, Basil resigned as an executive Director and a
member of Executive Committee on 11 January 2017.

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of Audit Committee on 11 August
2016 and resigned on 11 January 2017.

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of Audit Committee, a member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on 21
December 2016.

Mr. WONG Chak Keung resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of Audit Committee on 11 August 2016.

Mr. ZHANG Li resigned as an executive Director, co-chairman of
the Board and a member of Executive Committee on 12 July 2016.

Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS ceased to be an independent
non-executive Director and a member of Audit Committee on 5
May 2016.

The Directors are not members of the Board at the relevant time
but also attended the meeting by invitation.

The Directors are not members of the committees at the relevant
time but attended the meetings by invitation.

Apart from holding physical meetings, the Board and

Board committees also circulate written resolutions for

approval by the relevant members of the Board and Board

committees except for matters where a substantial

shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest which

the Board has determined to be material in compliance
with Code Provision A.1.7 of the CG Code.

The Board having considered the attendance records and

training records of the Directors and the confirmation

provided by each Director is satisfied that each Director

spends sufficient time performing his responsibilities.

030 Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

GER

1. REERER _FT—tF A+ REZERH
TEERRTZEEKE -

2. FAMARER T —tF A+ HEZEIRE
UMITEERELZBREERE -

3. REERER-_T—LF AT - RAEZERS
VIRTEF BREZEE FHZEENESR

4. BEEREER-ZE—LF-AT—BBREIRTE
ENMITREERE -

5. MRGEFXER-ZB-—R"FNAT-—BEZERE
TIRTEERERZREERE IR -_FT—+
F—A+—BEBHE-

6. WETERER-T—RF+ A=+ HEESE
JIENTEE BREZEGIR FHERRER
REZBEKE -

7. BEREEN-E-R"FNAT-—BEBREEILHE
WITEERERZEGKE -

8. RAAER-T-—RFLAT _HBRERTE
£ EERHAIENRTREEKS

9. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS St A —Z —7<X
FHARBTHABUINTEEREREESY

* REARHESTIFAEEGREENERHE

¢
@Eﬁé °

* RIEARHEFTEAZTEEREEEIHTEE

o

/53

BRIHFEERIN EFEREFRREN
BREEMAZERE  USKEZSNEEEE
SHEBKENHIE  EXBRRKEE SR
MamERMEFSBREEE G RIS R
NEANTGERBBERNEERI -

REBEEZHFLHEMBFICELSES
REZERSER EESEMNZERTENH
ZARFHEBITHERE -



Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Currently, the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer ("CEQ") of the Group are held by Mr.
ZHOU Xijian and Mr. ZHANG Qi respectively. The roles of
Chairman and CEO are segregated and their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

The chairman'’s principal role is to provide leadership for
the Board on corporate and strategic planning, ensure
proper proceedings of the Board and encourage all
Directors to have active contributions to the Board’s
affairs.

The CEO, supported by the other executive Directors and
management, is to manage and operate the Group's day-
to-day business, including the implementation of major
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Non-executive Director

Mr. ZHOU Xijian, Chairman and non-executive Director, is
appointed for a term of three years under his letter of
appointment. All Directors including non-executive
Director are subject to retirement by rotation and eligible
for re-election at AGM at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-laws. The Company has issued
formal letter of appointment to Mr. ZHOU setting out key
terms of his appointment.

Independent Non-executive Directors

On 21 December 2016, Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius resigned
as an independent non-executive Director and ceased to
act as a member of each of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of
the Company. As a result, the Company was not in
compliance with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Code Provision A.5.1
of the CG Code after Mr. TSE's resignation. On 11 January
2017, Mr. LAU Shu Yan was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of Audit
Committee. In addition, Mr. ZHANG Huijun was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Following the appointments of Mr. LAU and Mr. ZHANG,
the Company is in compliance with the requirements
under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
the Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.
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Every independent non-executive Director, are appointed
for a specific term under their letters of appointment. All
Directors including independent non-executive Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-
election at AGM at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-laws. The Company has issued
formal letter of appointment to its independent non-
executive Directors setting out key terms of their
appointments.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Based on the contents of such confirmation, the Company
still considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Independent Non-executive Director who has
served for more than nine years

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang has served as independent
non-executive Director for more than nine years. To
comply with Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, Mr.
WANG retired voluntarily and was re-elected as Director
at the 2012 and 2015 AGM of the Company held on 27
August 2012 and 27 August 2015 respectively. Mr. WANG
will also retire for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of
the Company to be held on 30 August 2017.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
Each newly appointed Director has received
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first
occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
an appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing
continuing briefing and professional development to
Directors at the Company's expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations
on changes and developments relating to the Group's
business and the legislative and regulatory environments
in which the Group conducts its business to the Directors.
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The training received by the Directors during the year EENEE_ T +tFHUA=TRHILFEE
ended 30 April 2017 is summarised as follows: STEEE IR T ¢

___________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Attending seminars and/or
reading materials on legal

and regulatory updates,

corporate governance,

director’s duties and

responsibilities

Directors or group’s business
HERNER REE
FREEREERTER -
TLEER EEBER

= EEREBELHMR

1 ——

Non-Executive Director FHITES

ZHOU Xijian (Chairman) AFEE(ERE) v/

Executive Directors HITES

ZHANG Qi (Chief Executive Officer) RE (TTHRAER) 4

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (President) HEF (F) v/

ZHANG Jifeng (Appointed on 11 January 2017) REIE (R —F—+F— F+—FREEZ(E) v/

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES

WANG Arthur Minshiang F & v

LAU Shu Yan (Appointed on 11 January 2017) B N (R =—F—+F— A+—AREH) v

ZHANG Huijun (Appointed on 11 January 2017) REE(R=F—+F—A+—ABEHF) v

Ex-Directors AMES

HWANG Hau-zen, Basil BER 4
(Resigned on 11 January 2017) (R=F—+F—F+—HEHE)

HENG Victor Ja Wei TR 4 v
(Appointed on 11 August 2016 and (RZFB—NFNA+—HEZEL
resigned on 11 January 2017) R-B—tF—F+—HBE)

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HEDT v/
(Resigned on 21 December 2016) (R-F—NFF+-A-+—HEE)

WONG Chak Keung mER 4
(Resigned on 11 August 2016) (R=F—XFNA+—HEHE)

ZHANG Li bl v
(Resigned on 12 July 2016) (R=ZF—NFLAF+=HFT)

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS N/A
(Ceased to act on 5 May 2016) (R-E—ANFAARABTHBELESE) ANiE A
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Change to the Emolument of Directors
Since the last published annual report, the following
changes were made to the emolument of Directors:

The director’s fee of Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang has
been increased to HK$357,024 per annum with effect from
1 August 2016.

The director’s fee of Mr. ZHOU Xijian has been increased
to HK$100,000 per month with effect from 1 May 2017.

The director’s salary of Mr. ZHANG Qi has been increased
to HK$100,000 per month with effect from 1 May 2017.

Company Secretary

Mr. WONG Lim Yam has been the company secretary in
replacement of Mr. HWANG Hau-zen, Basil with effect
from 11 January 2017. Mr. WONG is an employee of the
Group.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that
the board procedures are followed, advising the Board on
all corporate governance matters, and arranging induction
programs including briefings on the general and specific
duties of directors under legal and regulatory
requirements for newly appointed directors. The company
secretary facilitates the induction and professional
development of directors.

During the year ended 30 April 2017, Mr. WONG has
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to refresh his skills and knowledge.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently has four committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs.

Terms of reference of all Board committees are available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.
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Current structure of the Board

The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expenses.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of all the executive
Directors as follows:

ZHANG Qi (chairman)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis
ZHANG Jifeng (appointed on 11 January 2017)

Ex-Committee members
HWANG Hau-zen, Basil (resigned on 11 January 2017)
ZHANG Li (resigned on 12 July 2016)

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management
and operation functions of the Group to the Executive
Committee save to the extent that certain powers and
authorities are reserved to the full Board or the other
Board committees. The Executive Committee is also
responsible for reviewing or recommending to the Board
the investment transactions of the Group and has the
power to approve transactions that would not constitute
notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules, connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules or capital market activities.
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During the year, the Executive Committee passed written
resolutions and held one meeting to approve the change
of bank signing arrangement.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors as follows:

LAU Shu Yan (chairman) (appointed on 11 January 2017)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
ZHANG Huijun (appointed on 11 January 2017)

Ex-Committee members
HENG Victor Ja Wei (resigned on 11 January 2017)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (resigned on 21 December 2016)
WONG Chak Keung (resigned on 11 August 2016)
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

(ceased to act on 5 May 2016)

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company's existing external auditor.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
the Company’s annual reports and accounts, interim
reports and results announcements and to provide advice
and comments thereon to the Directors. The Audit
Committee also reviews and monitors the external
auditor’'s independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process. The members meet
regularly with the external auditor and the Company's
senior management for the review and supervision of the
Company'’s financial reporting, risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee is also
responsible for monitoring integrity of the financial
statements of the Company and the Company’s annual
reports and accounts and interim reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in
them.

As required by Code Provision C.3.7 of the CG Code,
details of arrangements for employees to raise concerns
about improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
and other matters have been included in the employees’
handbook since 1 April 2012.
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The Company amended the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, which took effect from 1 May 2016, in
order to conform to the revised Code Provision C.3.3 of
the CG Code.

The Audit Committee met two times during the year
ended 30 April 2017. The attendance of individual
Directors at the committee meetings is set out on page 29

of this annual report.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the
year ended 30 April 2017 included:

(a)

review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the group financial controller (who heads a team of
professional staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function) or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

review the interim and annual results of the Group
and discussed and approved the relevant financial
reports, reviewed the Group's internal control
system;

recommend the Board to approve the engagement
of an external independent professional firm as the
outsourced internal auditor of the Company;

approve an Internal Audit Charter, Risk Assessment
Report and 2017-2019 Internal Audit Plan;

review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees, terms of engagement and independence,
and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor proposed by management;

review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company'’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system and
associated procedures; and

review the terms and conditions of connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Company which took place during the year.
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Private session between the Committee members and the
external auditor without the presence of the management
had also been arranged.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors, as follows:

WANG Arthur Minshiang (chairman)
ZHANG Qi
ZHANG Huijun (appointed on 11 January 2017)

Ex-Committee member
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (resigned on 21 December 2016)

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations on and approving the
Company's policy and structure for all the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing formal and transparent procedures for
developing remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice
and conditions. The Remuneration Committee shall
consult the chairman and/or the CEO of the Company
about their recommendations on remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages.

The Company adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) out of
the two models suggested by the CG Code. As a result,
the Board as a whole is responsible for determining the
remuneration of non-executive Directors whereas the
Remuneration Committee has the authority to approve
the remuneration of the individual executive Directors and
senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries
as well as share options related matters.
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The Remuneration Committee met one time for the year
ended 30 April 2017. The attendance of individual
Directors at the committee meetings is set out on page 29
of this annual report.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year ended 30 April 2017 included:

(i) recommending the remuneration of the new
Directors and adjustment of remuneration of
independent non-executive Directors; and

(i) to review and approve the adjustment of the
remuneration of an executive Director and make
recommendation to the Board on the proposed
adjustment of remuneration of a non-executive
Director.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members,
the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors, as follows:

ZHOU Xijian (chairman)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
ZHANG Huijun (appointed on 11 January 2017)

Ex-Committee member
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (resigned on 21 December 2016)

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include
the following:

(@)  review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b)  identify individual suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorship;
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(c) assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, having regard to the
requirements of the Listing Rules;

(d) make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particulars the
chairman and the chief executive; and

(e) ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business, and in that regard, the Nomination
Committee should assist the Board to formulate and
review a policy concerning diversity of Board
members.

The Nomination Committee met one time for the year
ended 30 April 2017. The attendance of individual
Directors at the committee meetings is set out on page 29
of this annual report.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 30 April 2017 included:

(i) review the Directors who were due to retire pursuant
to the Bye-laws and the CG Code and recommended
that they be subject to retirement and re-election at
the 2016 annual general meeting;

(i)  consider the appointment of several Directors and
made recommendations to the Board for such to be
approved, if the Board thought fit;

(i)  review the structure, size and composition of the
Board (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board;

(iv) assess the independence of each independent non-
executive Directors.
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(D) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROLS

The Board places great importance on risk management
and internal control and has ultimate responsibilities for
overseeing management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group on an ongoing basis. The
Board is also committed to review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems.

The Group established the risk management and internal
control systems with aims to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatements or losses caused by judgment in
decision making process, human error, fraud or other
irregularities.

In order to comply with the applicable CG Code to the
Listing Rules, the Board has engaged, an external
independent professional firm as the outsourced internal
auditor with a view to facilitating adequacy of resources
and quality of review to satisfy the Group's internal audit
function as required by the Stock Exchange and to assist
the Board to perform annual reviews on the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 30 April 2017.
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During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group has
established an internal audit charter which defines the
scope and the duties and responsibilities of the internal
audit function and its reporting protocol. The Group has
conducted an annual risk assessment which identified
respective strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks
and compliance risks for the Group. Based on the risk
assessment results following a risk based methodology
audit approach, a three-year audit plan was devised which
prioritised the risks identified into annual audit projects.
The annual review was performed according to the audit
plan with a view to assisting the Board and the Audit
Committee to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems. The review
also covered the compliance of CG Code to the Listing
Rules, material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls at entity and operational levels.
The Group has taken further steps to enhance its risk
management and internal control systems according to
some weaknesses found during risk assessment and
examination of the internal control and strengthen the
implementation of all the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Group has established procedures in handling and
dissemination of inside information in an accurate and
secure manner and to avoid possible mishandling of
inside information within the Group.

Based on the risk management and internal control
systems established and maintained by the Group, the
work performed by the external auditor, the internal
auditor, and reviews performed by the management,
respective Board Committees and the Board, the Audit
Committee and the Board are of the view that the Group
has maintained an effective risk management and internal
control system during the year ended 30 April 2017.
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(E) ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Group for each
financial period and confirmed that the consolidated
financial statements contained herein give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 April 2017, and of the consolidated financial
performance and the consolidated cash flow of the Group
for the year. In preparing the accounts for the year ended
30 April 2017, the Directors, with the assistance of the
management, selected the suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgements and
estimates that are prudent, and prepared the accounts on
the going concern basis. Such acknowledgement should
be read in conjunction with, but be distinguished from,
the Independent Auditor’s Report of the external auditor
of the Company, Ernst & Young (“EY"), in relation to their
reporting responsibilities as set out in their auditor’s
report on pages 78 to 84 of this annual report.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s and the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 April 2017 have been audited by EY. For the
year ended 30 April 2017, fees charged by EY for audit
services amounted to US$285,000 and for non-audit
services was US$181,000. Non-audit services were mainly
related to tax services.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and posted it on the website of the Company
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to
shareholders’ communications, with the objective of
ensuring that shareholders are informed of balanced and
understandable information about the Company
(including the Group's strategies, businesses, major
developments and financial performance) in a factual and
timely manner and to enable them to exercise their rights
as shareholders in an informed manner. The Company
aims to be open and transparent with its shareholders and
encourage shareholders’ active participation at the
Company'’s general meetings.

Information would be communicated to the shareholders
mainly through the Company’s corporate communications
(such as interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars), annual general meetings and other general
meetings, as well as disclosure on the website of the
Company. Interim reports, annual reports and circulars are
sent to the shareholders in a timely manner and are also
available on the website of the Company. The Company’s
website provides shareholders with the corporate
information.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company as set out in “Shareholder Information” section
to this annual report, such as telephone hotline, fax
number, email address and postal address, in order to
enable them to make any query that they may have with
respect to the Company. They can also send their
enquiries to the Board through these means. In addition,
shareholders can contact Tricor Standard Limited, the
branch share registrar of the Company, if they have any
enquiries about their shareholdings and entitlements to

dividend.
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(G)

The Company’'s AGM allows the Directors to meet and
communicate with shareholders. The Company ensures
that shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board.
The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. AGM proceedings are
reviewed from time to time to ensure that the Company
follows good corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the AGM and the accompanying
circular also sets out details of each proposed resolution
and other relevant information as required under the
Listing Rules. Separate resolution is proposed for each
issue to be considered at the meeting. The chairman of
the AGM exercises his power under the Bye-laws to put
each proposed resolution to the vote by way of a poll. The
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll are
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.
Voting results are posted on the Company's website on
the day of the AGM.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures to convene a general meeting and
put forward proposals at general meetings
Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition, including
making proposals or moving a resolution at the special
general meeting. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the "Companies
Act”).
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Corporate Governance Report
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Shareholders may by written requisition request, deposit
at the registered office of the Company, inclusion of a
resolution relating to matters in a general meeting by
following the requirements and procedures as set out in
Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.

The above request can be sent to the Company at its
head office and principal place of business as set out in
the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report
for the attention of the company secretary.

Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections
of the Companies Act, on the written requisition of
members representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights or 100 members, at the expense of the
requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves, the
Company shall give shareholders notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting and a relevant statement.

Shareholders may also propose a person for election as
director, the procedures for which are available on the
Company's website.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can send their enquiries about
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company. Other shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the head office and principal
place of business of the Company as set out in the
"Corporate Information” section of this annual report for
the attention of the company secretary and the group
financial controller.

Details of the shareholders’ rights and communication
policy are also available on the Company’s website.
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ARERRE

(H) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS (H) ABERXH

Following a Share Consolidation effective on 27 RZZE—RNFNA-+LEBRHDEFEK
September 2016, the authorised share capital of the B ARRIZHEEBRAR_-_ZE—XFENA
Company changed to US$40,000,000 divided into shares —++tHE T A40,000,000E 7T © D AT
of US$0.04 each on 27 September 2016. An up to date set 0.04ETHIR - AR B &IABEIRZARM
of Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the KRR ABIA R R 7 MBS P 2 Bk Al &
Company is available on the websites of the Company B o BRATMIEEE IN - AR REB TR KN
and the Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above, there is PR NGIF U 3= = 3/l

no material changes to the Company’ Memorandum of
Association and Bye-Laws.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance Report
issued by the Group. It complements 2017 Annual Report of the
Company by providing information on the sustainability
performance of our operations in the period from 1 May 2016 to
30 April 2017 (“FY2017"). This report presents our management
approach, programme highlights and achievements in two
areas covering environmental and social aspect. This report is
prepared with reference to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide published by the Stock Exchange.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to reducing carbon emission. We have
started monitoring our carbon emission since 2013. We make
references to the EPD/EMSD Guidelines, GHG Protocol and
ISO 14064 standard and track Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission in
full. For Scope 3 emission, we track the emission caused by staff
air travelling.

The Group has implemented several measures to reduce
emission, including replacement of spot lights in showrooms
with energy saving LED bulbs, use of water saving taps in
washrooms, installation of video conference facilities to reduce
business travels and replacing copiers and printers with energy
saving models.

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emission Profile FY2017
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Unit

FY2017 Emission Contribution
Consumption (TCO,e) of Total
B2
—E—+FEHK (Wg — | b
FEHEEE EE) 15k

Scope 1 Total #E 1 425+

Unleaded Petrol £ /58 Litre F+ 12,257.6 29 6%
Scope 2 Total #1[E 2 # 5+

Electricity Consumption & /1)B#  kWh T L 632,485.47 341 71%
Scope 3 Total €& 3 45+

Air Travel R1T B8 Passenger km ’E A B 918,888 110 23%
Total Greenhouse Gas Emission:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL

1.

Employment

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. We embrace
anti-discrimination practices that protect employees from
being discriminated based on gender, age, family status,
sexual orientation, disability, race or religion. Our policy is
covered in induction course for all new joiners. We have a
formal complaints procedure for employees who feel that
they have been subject to discrimination.

In FY2017, the Group owns a total of 345 existing
employees. The breakdown of employee statistics is set
out below by age group and gender respectively:

Total Number of Employees by Age Group

Under30  10% 26%
31-40 35% 23%
41-50 37% 3%
Over 50 18% 5%

® Under 30

W 31-40 m 41-50 wm Over 50

Total Number of Employees by Gender

Male 36% 3%
Female 64% 10%

@

B Female m Male

ol
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SOCIAL (continued)
2. Health & Safety 2.
In the Group, there is no compromise on health and
safety. We strictly comply with local laws and regulations
concerning health and safety at work. From time to time,
we incorporate the requirements of health and safety at
work in the induction training for all new joiners. Since
financial year 2016, we have organised in-house safety and
health talk on prevention of musculoskeletal disorder for
office workers; work and common gastrointestinal
diseases. A total of 49 staff member attended the talk. We

regularly conduct fire drills in all offices we operate.

FY2017 Health and Safety Statistics

No. of Work Related Fatalities Nil
Rate of Work Related Fatalities Nil
No. of Injuries at Work Nil
Lost Days due to Injury at Work Nil
3. Development and Training 3.

The Group believes in human capital development. The
Group will only succeed when its employees succeed. We
emphasize the importance of developing human capital
and fostering a culture of lifelong learning. We are
committed to develop people with the right mix of
knowledge and personal effectiveness to develop the
business. We also believe that we should help our staff
grow professionally and personally along with the growth
of the Group.

It is a standard practice that new joiners will attend a half
day induction course in which the corporate culture,
health and safety at work, business ethics, corruption
prevention and highlights of staff handbook will be
covered.

Summary of Training in FY2017
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EEEA
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SOCIAL (continued)

4.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly observes the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in Hong Kong and relevant legislations in the
countries that we operate.

Child labour and forced labour are important parts of our
Corporate Social Responsibility Compliance Manual. We
do not allow our suppliers to use child labour nor prison
labour/forced labour irrespective of the local legislation.

The Group does not receive any report of material
violation of relevant standards, rules and regulations
regarding prevention of child labour or forced labour
during the reporting period.

Supply Chain Management

Supply chain management is the core of our business. We
have developed a comprehensive Corporate Social
Responsibility Compliance Manual and established
Vendor Code of Conduct since 2009. The Manual outlines
the full audit procedures and requirements in compliance
with our Vendor Code of Conduct and the social
compliance as well as C-TPAT requirements of our
customers. Our in-house social compliance team guides
suppliers on requirements of international standards and
promotes ethical sourcing in the emerging markets.

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Area

} M China

B Hong Kong

Bangladesh
W Other

Taiwan
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SOCIAL (continued)

6.

Product Responsibility

Protecting IP Rights

We strictly observe intellectual property rights and protect
our customer’s product design information by only
allowing authorised personnel access the relevant
information. Our Staff Handbook provides guidance to
staff members in handling customer intellectual
properties.

We require our suppliers devoting best efforts to protect
intellectual property of the customer according to signed
Terms and Conditions.

Quality Assurance procedure

We have a complete quality assurance procedure in place
for products produced by suppliers before shipping to
customers.

Complaint and Recall

The Group has established a Claim Alert System which
records customer claims and complaints. All reported
cases will be jointly investigated by our Account Manager
and suppliers. In FY2017, the Claim & Complaint rate out
of total shipment value is 0.17% and 0.3% respectively.
There is no product recall during the reporting period.

Customer data protection

Customer data are captured and maintained in our
“LOGON" with access
control. Our internal policy details the confidentiality

custom-made computer system,

requirements of customer information. In FY2017, there is
no report on violation of customer data protection
requirements.

Anti-corruption

The Group has implemented comprehensive mechanisms
to ensure that high standard of ethical business practices
are adopted when our employees deal with suppliers and
service providers. Our Staff Handbook clearly states our
policies in avoiding conflict of interest and the whistle-
blowing channels. From time to time we organise ICAC
talks to refresh staff's awareness on anti-corruption. Since
FY2016, totally 68 staff members have attended ICAC
corruption prevention talk. No corruption case is reported
during the year.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Community Investment
The Group draws talent in the society and provides supply

8.

chain management services in the fashion and accessories

industry. The Group’s Community Investment Programme

is our long-term strategic involvement in community

partnerships to address social issues chosen by the Group

to protect corporate interests and enhance reputation.

The social issues chosen by the Group are:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Environmental improvement

We encourage our employees and their family
members participate in community environmental
programmes. We have been participating the
Produce Green Foundation Programmes since
financial year 2014. In FY2017, 24 employees and
family members have joined the Foundation's
organic farm project and gained hands-on farming
experience together with 30 students and parents
from the Hong Kong Children & Youth Services
Hung Hom Integrated Family Service Centre.

Since 2015, we have been working with Green
Ladies, a social eco enterprise operated by St.
James' Settlement, to promote fashion reuse culture
and reduce textile waste to the landfill. We consider
this is a good fit to our business. In FY2017, we have
donated product samples, a total value of USD1,579
to Green Ladies.

Relief of poverty

In FY2017, we have participated a donation
programme “One Heart Gift Bag” organised by
Community Roots China. We sponsor employees in
our Shanghai Office a total of USD7,808 for donation
of school bags, books and stationery to children in
rural district in China.

Talent development

The Group offers training opportunities to students
in design, fashion and textile discipline. In FY2017,
we have provided on-the-job internship to relevant
students of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education (IVE).
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Report of the Directors
EHREHEE

The Directors present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 30 April 2017.

Principal activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 39 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business
and geographical segments as well as information about major
customers is set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Financial results

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
85.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 1.38 HK cents per ordinary share,
totalling approximately US$626,000, was declared and paid to
shareholders during the year.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 April 2017.

Business review

A fair review of the Group’s business and a discussion and
analysis of the Group's performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position are
included in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section
on pages 8 to 17 of this annual report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be
found throughout this annual report, particularly in Note 36 to
the financial statements. Particulars of important events
affecting the Company that have occurred after the reporting
year ended 30 April 2017 can also be found on pages 76 and 77
of this Report of the Directors and Note 37 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Financial Highlights”
and "Financial Review” sections from pages 2 to 3 and page 12
respectively of this annual report.
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Business review (continued)

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to better protect the environment by
encouraging its employees to reduce consumption of electricity
and paper, reduce waste, and use environmental friendly
products whenever possible. Details of the relevant policies are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 48 to 53 of this annual report.

Compliance

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence
to the relevant laws and regulations including but not limited to
the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance, the Securities and
Futures Ordinance ("SFO") and the Money Lenders Ordinance
that are relevant to the Group. Laws in other jurisdictions may
also apply to our non-Hong Kong operations, and both in Hong
Kong and elsewhere.

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, with the support and assistance of the
legal and company secretarial department. The Group has also
engaged external counsels to provide advice regarding the
rules and laws on the business transactions when required.

As far as the Company is aware, save as already disclosed in the
Company's announcements, it has complied with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EBRRLE

Business review (continued)

Key relationships with stakeholders

Employees

The Group's remuneration policy and staff development
scheme are set out on page 16 of this annual report.

The Group implemented comprehensive mechanisms to ensure
that high standard of ethical business practices are adopted
when our employees dealing with suppliers and service
providers. Our Staff Handbook states our policies in avoiding
conflict of interest and the whistle-blowing channels.

We are an equal opportunity employer. We embrace anti-
discrimination practices that protect potential and existing
employees from being disadvantaged or excluded on the basis
of gender, age, family status, sexual orientation, disability, race

or religion.

We strictly comply with local laws and regulations concerning
health and safety at work.

Customers

As a global supply chain management solutions provider and
business partner, the Group offers diverse and comprehensive
services to a wide range of customers including some of the
world’s leading retailers, well known brands, wholesalers, mail
order houses and department stores in North America, Europe,
Australia and South Africa. The Group continues to strengthen
ties with the customers and strives to meet their growing
demand on price and service level by reaching out for new
supply base and expanding into new product categories. To
improve the customer service level, the Group has set a claim
alert system to record and track the status of claims and
complaints received from customers.

Suppliers

The Group operates an international sourcing network with a
focus on emerging markets. Supplier management is the core
of our supply chain business, all the suppliers have been
evaluated by the Group based on their expertise, experience,
production capabilities and other production factors, and are
subject to constant performance review and evaluation by the
Group to improve their quality and efficiency. In addition, the
Group has developed an extensive Corporate Social
Responsibility Compliance Manual and Vendor Code of
Conduct, and has a complete quality assurance procedure in
place for products produced by suppliers before shipping to
customers.
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Ultimate holding company

During the year, the Directors regard Dache Global Investment
and Sino Remittance Holding Limited as the controlling
shareholders of the Company and Daohe Global Investment as
the ultimate holding company of the Company. The ultimate
controlling party of the Group is Mr. ZHOU Xijian, a non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Board.

As at 30 April 2017, Daohe Global Investment through its four
wholly-owned subsidiaries indirectly held an aggregate of
approximately 62.68% of the then issued share capital of the
Company.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 12 to the
financial statements.

Share capital
Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.

Reserves and distributable reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and Note 38 to the financial statements
respectively.

As at 30 April 2017, distributable reserves of the Company
consisted of the aggregate of contributed surplus and
retained earnings, which amounted to US$$9,483,000 (2016:
US$11,454,000).

Bye-law 138 of the Bye-laws requires that no dividend shall be
paid or distribution be made out of contributed surplus if to do
so would render the Company unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due or the realisable value of its assets would
thereby become less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.
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Report of the Directors
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Reserves and distributable reserves (continued)

In accordance with Section 54 of the Companies Act, the
Company shall not declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of its contributed surplus, if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than its liabilities.

Equity-linked agreements

Other than (i) the share option scheme of the Company as
disclosed below; (ii) the proposed placing of new shares under
general mandate and the lapse of the relevant placing
agreement as disclosed on page 13 of this annual report; and
(iii) the issue of consideration shares under specific mandate in
relation to a major transaction completed on 1 June 2017 as
disclosed on pages 76 to 77 of this annual report, no equity-
linked agreements that have, will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that have, will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

Share options and share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“2011 Share
Option Scheme"”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the annual general meeting of the Company on 29 August 2011.
The 2011 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years up to 2021, during which the Board or a committee
thereof may grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

The Company has granted options (“Share Options”) under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme to certain consultants
("Grantees”) on 6 November 2015. The Share Options entitle
the Grantees to subscribe for a total of 50,000,000 new shares
(5,000,000 new shares after the adjustment for the effect of the
Share Consolidation in September 2016) of the Company at a
subscription price of HK$1 per share (HK$10 per share after
Share Consolidation) of the Company with a validity period of
three years and may only be exercised if the average closing
price of the Company’s share for the five business days
immediate preceding the exercise date exceeds HK$2 (HK$20
per share after Share Consolidation) per share of the Company.
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Share options and share option scheme (continued)
Details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1.

Purpose
The primary purpose of the 2011 Share Option Scheme is

to provide incentives or rewards to eligible persons for

their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

Eligible persons
The eligible persons under the 2011 Share Option Scheme

include:

()

(iii)

any Director or proposed Director (whether
executive or non-executive, including any
independent non-executive Director), employee or
proposed employee (whether full time or part time)
of, or any individual for the time being seconded to
work for, any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder of
the Company; or

any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any controlling shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder of the Company; or

any business partner, agent, consultant or
representative of, or any person or entity that
provides research, development or other
technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to, or any supplier of
goods or services to, or any customer of, any
member of the Group or any controlling shareholder
of the Company or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Share options and share option scheme (continued)

3.

Total number of shares available for issue

The initial total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the date of approval of the 2011
Share Option Scheme (i.e. 34,153,463 shares after the
adjustment for the effect of the Share Consolidation in
September 2016). As at 30 April 2017, the total number of
shares available for issue under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme (save for those granted but not yet exercised) is
29,153,463, representing approximately 8.25% of the
Company's issued share capital as at the date of this

annual report.

Subject to the approval by the Company’s shareholders,
the aggregate number of the Company’s shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 30% of the Company’s
shares in issue from time to time. Options granted to the
independent non-executive Directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company'’s shares in
issue and with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5
million resulting in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and
to be granted to such person under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant of such option must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Maximum entitlement for each eligible person
The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the 2011
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company to any eligible persons
(including those cancelled, exercised and outstanding
options), in any 12-month period up to the date of the
latest grant shall not exceed 1% of the Company's shares
in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of such limit
must be separately approved by the Company’s
shareholders in a general meeting.
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Share options and share option scheme (continued)

5.

Time of exercise of options

Options may be exercised at any time commencing on
the date as the Board may determine and ending on such
date as the Board may determine but shall not exceed 10
years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of
grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

Minimum holding period of the option before it
can be exercised

The 2011 Share Option Scheme does not specify any
minimum holding period but the Board has the authority
to determine the minimum period for which a share
option in respect of some or all of the shares forming the
subject of the share options must be held before it can be
exercised.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance

Offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made.
No consideration is required to be paid by the Grantee of
an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer for
the grant of an option.

Exercise Price

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company's shares on the date of offer of grant and the
average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of grant.

Remaining life of the 2011 Share Option Scheme
Subject to the earlier termination of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme in accordance with the rules governing
the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the 2011 Share Option
Scheme will expire on 29 August 2021.
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Share options and share option scheme (continued)
Movements of the options to subscribe for shares of the
Company granted to the consultants under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme during the year were as follows:

BRENBRESTSE e
RAFEARE - T ——FERET 2R T M
AREARNTRG 2 BRESSISAMT -

Options granted by the Company
Number of underlying shares of the Company

FRAREBRERE A LARNHR

Outstanding Outstanding ~ Subscription
asat Cancelled asat price per Date of Exercise
1 May 2016 Granted  Exercised by forfeiture Lapsed 30 April 2017 share grant period
(HK9)
R=B-x% R=%-+#%
#fA-H 2B MA=+A
HWATE R BITE RUHE BAX  HATE  SERRE  REER  TEER
(&7)
! _________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Consultants B 06/11/2015-
(the “Grantees”)**  ([F&BAL)* 5,000,000 - - (2,500,000) - 2,500,000 1000*  06/11/2015  05/11/2018*
Total A&t 5,000,000 - - (2,500,000) - 2,500,000
* The Share Options may only be exercised by the Grantees during the — * ARARARITEBARAERETEAARELEEEH

exercise period if the average closing price of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange stated in its daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediate preceding the exercise date exceeds HK$20
(HK$2 before Share Consolidation) per share of the Company.

*x The share options under 2011 Share Option Scheme have been adjusted
for the effect of Share Consolidation in September 2016.

Notes:
(i) The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock

Exchange’s daily quotations sheet immediately before the date on which
the outstanding options were granted were as follows:

ARRR AN T UL (B (U B AR 2 P B 3RE R T8
ERYE)EDSRREB 208 T (LA A GHAT 2)8 TT) 8915
T A AT AR

o CE——FRRESRE TOBREER T —AEA
AR A 02 R B -

0] MNERHARITRBRER L AHE  BEXRERZE
BRERAR  AABRODZEHENT

Date of grant
R B8

Trading day immediately
before the date of grant
ERBRHAMAIZRSH

Closing price per share
immediately before

the date of grant
RERHBAHAZERETE
HK$

BT

06/11/2015

05/11/2015 8.9**

No options under the 2011 Share Option Scheme were exercised during
the year ended 30 April 2017. 25,000,000 options (or 2,500,000 options
after Share Consolidation) were cancelled on 1 August 2016.

*%

The share options under 2011 Share Option Scheme have been adjusted
for the effect of Share Consolidation in September 2016.
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Share options and share option scheme (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

The Company has used the Black-Scholes Model for estimating the fair
value of options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme. The Black-
Scholes Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair
value of an option which can be exercised before the expiry of the option
period. The assumptions used in the calculation are:

(a) Risk-free interest rate — the yield of 3-year Exchange Fund Note on
the date of grant

(b) Expected volatility of share price — 34.94%
(c) Expected life of share options — 3 years
(d) Expected dividend payout rate — 40%

The amount charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year ended
30 April 2017 was approximately US$142,000 (2016: US$141,000).

No option was granted during the year under review. The fair value of
options granted during the corresponding period last year using the Black-
Scholes Model was approximately US$847,000.

The calculation of the fair value of options using the Black-Scholes Model
is based on various assumptions and is only an estimate. It is possible that
the financial benefit accruing to the option holders may be substantially
different from the value of options calculated.
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Directors
The directors who held office in the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Non-executive Director
ZHOU Xijian

Executive Directors

ZHANG Qi

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

ZHANG Jifeng (appointed on 11 January 2017)
HWANG Hau-zen, Basil (resigned on 11 January 2017)
ZHANG Li (resigned on 12 July 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang
LAU Shu Yan (appointed on 11 January 2017)
ZHANG Huijun (appointed on 11 January 2017)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (resigned on 21 December 2016)
WONG Chak Keung (resigned on 11 August 2016)
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS
(ceased to be a director on 5 May 2016)
HENG Victor Ja Wei (appointed on 11 August 2016
and resigned on 11 January 2017)

The Company and Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS
reached a consensus that the term under the then existing letter
of appointment of Mr. TULLENERS would not be renewed upon
its expiration. Accordingly, with effect from 5 May 2016, Mr.
TULLENERS ceased to be an independent non-executive
Director of the Company.

Furthermore, each of Mr. HWANG Hau-zen, Basil, Mr. ZHANG
Li, Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius and Mr.
WONG Chak Keung resigned as Director due to his decision to
devote more time to his other commitments. Each of the
aforesaid Director confirmed that he has no disagreement with
the Board and there is no matter that need to bring to the
attention to the shareholders and the Stock Exchange in
relation to his resignation.

Mr. ZHANG Jifeng, Mr. LAU Shu Yan and Mr. ZHANG Huijun,
the newly appointed Directors on the aforesaid date, in
accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, retired and were
re-elected at the special general meeting held on 23 May 2017.

Mr. ZHOU Xijian, Mr. ZHANG Qi and Mr. WANG Arthur
Minshiang, in accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Bye-laws, will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ service contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
have a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Permitted indemnity

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties in his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance
cover for the Directors and officers of the Group.

Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations

As at 30 April 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO, or were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:
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Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares

and debentures of the Company and its

associated corporations (continued)

(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations

EERALATREREBEIEZRMG - 48
ERORESFPZES @)

RARQTRREABEE 2ROz EH
589 )

(a)

Name of Directors Capacity

)

Percentage of
shareholding in the
same class of

Number and class securities as at

of securities 30 April 2017
(Note 1)

R-ZE—tHF

mMA=+H

ER B = 5+

EHEHE RER ZREEDL
(B&ET)

The Company

N
ZHOU Xijian Interest of controlled
IEEERAR corporations (Note 2)

RyEhEE 2 s (MEE2)

Beneficial owner

EHmBEAA

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis
EEF

Beneficial owner

EDBEAA

WANG Arthur Minshiang
E&HE

Associated corporation — Daohe Global Investment (Note 2)

MEBOEE — BNRRERE (FEE2)

ZHOU Xijian Beneficial owner
B EnlEBA
ZHANG Qi Beneficial owner
SRE BEmEa A

221,373,809 62.68%

ordinary shares
IR
(L

1,250,000
ordinary shares
E B

(L)

130,000
ordinary shares
gl

(L)

0.35%

0.04%

8,000 80%

ordinary shares
E iR

(L)

2,000

ordinary shares
EBA

(L)

20%
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Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations

(continued)
Notes:

(1) The letter “L" represents the Director’s long position in the shares

) As at 30 April 2017, (i) Sino Remittance Holding Limited owned
170,750,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
48.34% of the issued share capital of the Company; (ii) Fame City
Developments Limited owned 19,896,845 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 5.63% of the issued share capital of the
Company; (iii) Oceanic Force Limited owned 30,680,964 shares of
the Company, representing approximately 8.69% of the issued
share capital of the Company; and (iv) Winning Port International
Limited owned 46,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 0.01% of the issued share capital of the Company.
By virtue of the relationship between Mr. ZHOU Xijian and Daohe
Global Investment as stated in Note (2) to the paragraph headed
"Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company” below, Mr. ZHOU
was deemed, by virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, to
be interested in the shares of the Company in which Daohe Global
Investment, Sino Remittance Holding Limited, Fame City
Developments Limited, Oceanic Force Limited and Winning Port
International Limited were interested.

Interests and short positions in the underlying
shares of the Company and its associated
corporations

As at 30 April 2017, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had interests or short positions
in the underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests and short positions in the debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations

As at 30 April 2017, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had interests or short positions
in the debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company

As at 30 April 2017, the following shareholders (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are set out above) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

EEBRERONES 2EF

B EXATEEES - RAEENEFRRE AR
RSEEAERAR - BRHER RSB R A
BEL R AARRAEAR R ES (BERS
BCAB B oK W 18 5R M0 F 40) AT REBE AR A Bl AT 7]
A 8 2 B A5 o B 5 TR ERFSS

FERRRAQXARDEEBRO S 2
BERAR

RZZ—tFOA=1+B " TIBRREREART
2By MR 2 SRR EER EXZA
NAEE RITBHARERIN RARRLZ Bt MARRE
B EEBRARNRRIREES KRE GRS
B EFEZECMZERIAR

Name of substantial shareholders ~ Capacity

TERREB 545

Approximate

Beneficial owner

BEmiEAA

Sino Remittance Holding Limited
FEEZERBR AR

Beneficial owner
EnEAA

Fame City Developments Limited

Beneficial owner

BEmiEAA

Oceanic Force Limited

Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 2)

SARHAE 2 s (M 2)

Daohe Global Investment
BMRKIEE

Number of percentage of

shares of the interests as at

Company held 30 April 2017
(Note 1)

R-ZE—+t#F

mA=t+tHZ

BFEXRRRHHE EEHSYEIL
(FFaED)

170,750,000 (L) 48.34%
19,896,845 (L) 5.63%
30,680,946 (L) 8.69%

221,373,809 (L) 62.68%
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Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares

of the Company (continued)
Notes:

M The letter “L" represents the entity’s long position in the shares.

2 As at 30 April 2017, (i) Sino Remittance Holding Limited owned 170,750,000
shares of the Company, representing approximately 48.34% of the issued
share capital of the Company; (ii) Fame City Developments Limited owned
19,896,845 shares of the Company, representing approximately 5.63% of
the issued share capital of the Company; (i) Oceanic Force Limited owned
30,680,964 shares of the Company, representing approximately 8.69% of
the issued share capital of the Company; and (iv) Winning Port International
Limited owned 46,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
0.01% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Each of Sino Remittance Holding Limited, Fame City Developments
Limited, Oceanic Force Limited and Winning Port International Limited is
wholly-owned by Daohe Global Investment, which is in turn 80%-owned by
Mr. ZHOU Xijian and 20%-owned by Mr. ZHANG Qi. Mr. ZHOU Xijian and
Mr. ZHANG Qi, the Directors of the Company, are also the directors of
Sino Remittance Holding Limited, Fame City Developments Limited,
Oceanic Force Limited, Winning Port International Limited and Daohe
Global Investment. As such, Daohe Global Investment was deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company in which Sino Remittance Holding
Limited, Fame City Developments Limited, Oceanic Force Limited and
Winning Port International Limited were interested by virtue of the
provisions of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2017, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which are required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

Related party transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
during the year are disclosed in Note 33 to the financial
statements. Save as disclosed below, these related party
transactions either (i) do not constitute connected or continuing
connected transactions or (ii) fall under the definition of a
connected or continuing connected transaction, but are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Connected transactions

The following transactions between certain connected persons
(as defined under Rule 14A.06(7) of the Listing Rules) and the
Company's subsidiaries constitute a continuing connected
transaction and a connected transaction respectively under the
Listing Rules and are subject to the announcement, reporting
and annual review requirements but are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions have been
entered into, and for the continuing connected transaction, is
ongoing, for which relevant announcements had been made by
the Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Continuing connected transaction relating to
Tamarind International Limited

On 29 September 2015, Tamarind International Limited
(“Tamarind”) (for its own and on behalf of its subsidiaries from
time to time (together with Tamarind are collectively referred to
as “"Tamarind Group”)) entered into a master lease agreement
("Lease”) with Wellbuild International Limited (“Wellbuild”) (for
its own and on behalf of its subsidiaries from time to time
(together with Wellbuild are collectively referred to as
“Wellbuild Group”)). Pursuant to the Lease, Wellbuild Group
agreed to lease to Tamarind Group certain portions of a
commercial building in Shanghai, PRC (“Premises”) with gross
floor area of approximately 1,967 square metres by way of sub-
letting arrangement for a term of two years commencing from 1
October 2015 to 30 September 2017 (both dates inclusive). The
monthly rent (inclusive of management fee) payable by
Tamarind to Wellbuild under the Lease is HK$330,000. The
Premises are used by Tamarind Group as its Shanghai office.
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Continuing connected transaction relating to
Tamarind International Limited (continued)

Wellbuild is (i) a wholly-owned subsidiary of Roly International
Ltd. (a company incorporated in Bermuda and a controlled
corporation of Mr. WANG Lu Yen (“Mr. WANG")), and (ii) a
controlled corporation and an associate of Mr. WANG. Mr.
WANG (a) was an executive Director and a director of its
subsidiary, Tamarind, who resigned on 23 February 2015 and 30
April 2015 respectively but continues to be regarded as a
connected person of the Company for 12 months after ceasing
to be an executive Director and a director of its subsidiary, and
(b) is a director of Wellbuild. As Mr. WANG is a connected
person of the Company at the time when Tamarind entered into
the Lease with Wellbuild, Wellbuild and its subsidiaries were
thus regarded as connected persons of the Company.
Accordingly, the Lease constitutes a continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules.

The annual caps were calculated with reference to the
aggregate rental paid/payable by Tamarind Group to Wellbuild
Group under the Lease.

The approximate aggregate value and the annual caps are set
out below:

Report of the Directors
EFEREE

& B Tamarind International Limited &
HEBERXS @
EERNEZERBEBEERERAR(—KRRBREED
sz nr RERERE(EREDEH 2
FEE) 2 2EMBRAR  Ri)EREZZERE
ERBMEA  TEEQEANTEZREWELR
AXEHESE  FER-E—RF_A=-+=H
F_E-—AFENA=F+HARBETRITESRZ
MEBARZES  BERTBETHITESLEN
BRAESEBEZ T ZBARNEEARAE ZHE
HAT: RO)BEAZEZEF - AR TEERK
EMHHEISZEIVHAEERAARRMBEAL
IWEEREMNBARIWRARARIBEAL i)
HEEK ETMRUTHRBERERS -

FELRD2EXRGHEEREEEC N, EM
EREENHS BT -

BMABRENFE LREAMNT

Approximate aggregate value

for year ended

Annual caps
for the year ended

30 April 2017 30 April 2017
BE-Z—tFHEA=THLFE HBE-ZF-—tFHEA=+THLFE
ZHABE ZEELR
1 e
The Lease (being 12 months’ rental HK$3,960,000 HK$3,960,000
from 1 May 2016 to 30 April
2017)
HEMBRIZ_Z—XR"FRA—HZE 3,960,000 7T 3,960,000 7T

—E—+HEWA=+AZ
TZEAES)

BMRHEEERAF
il QUN

—=



Report of the Directors
EBRRLE

Continuing connected transaction relating to
Tamarind International Limited (continued)

The Board, including the independent non-executive Directors
reviewed and confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction was entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3)  according to the agreement governing it on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain fact
finding procedures on the above continuing connected
transaction on a sample basis in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA. The Board
confirmed that it had received an unqualified letter from the
auditor of the Company containing their findings and conclusion
in respect of the continuing connected transaction. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the transaction stated above.
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Termination of a connected transaction relating
to the acquisition of Hong Kong Wing Yue Asset
Management Limited

Daohe Capital Limited (“Daohe Capital”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding and an agreement (“Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) with Hong Kong Wing Yue Financial
Group Holdings Limited (“Vendor”) on 2 December 2015 and
22 January 2016 respectively.

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Daohe Capital
conditionally agreed to purchase and the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell the entire issued shares of Hong Kong Wing Yue
Asset Management Limited ("Wing Yue”) at an aggregate
consideration of HK$14.5 million plus the net asset value of
Wing Yue.

Mr. ZHOU Xijian, a non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and the controlling shareholder of the Company, is the
sole shareholder and sole director of the Vendor. The Vendor is
therefore an associate of Mr. ZHOU and a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 10 November 2016, due to the changes in the business
environment and strategy of the Company, the original
commercial intent and expectation of the Vendor and the
Company to the Sale and Purchase Agreement no longer hold
and they entered into a memorandum of termination to
terminate the Sale and Purchase Agreement. No consideration
had been paid by Daohe Capital to the Vendor under the Sale
and Purchase Agreement and the memorandum of termination.

Details of the transaction and its termination were disclosed in
the Company’s announcements dated 2 December 2015, 22
January 2016 and 10 November 2016.
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Directors’ interests in transaction, arrangement
or contracts

Save as disclosed above and in Note 33 to the financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the Company’s controlling shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries, in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company was entered into during
the year.

Major customers and vendors of the Group

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group in
aggregate accounted for approximately 84.7% of the revenue
from sales of goods and rendering of services of the Group and
the largest customer accounted for approximately 38.1% of the
revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services of the
Group.

The five largest vendors of the Group in aggregate accounted
for approximately 24.3% of the Group's total shipment volume
placed by the Group and the largest vendor accounted for
approximately 9.8% of the Group's total shipment value placed
by the Group.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) had any interest in the top five customers or vendors
noted above.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

During the year ended 30 April 2017, neither the Company, nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any share of
the Company.
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Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Financial summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 180
and 181.

Donation
During the year, the Group made charitable donations of
approximately US$2,000.

Corporate governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 25 to 47.

Public float

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 30 April 2017 have been audited by Ernst & Young who
will retire and, being eligible offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Emnst & Young as auditor
of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Report of the Directors
EFRRLE

BrBEER

NS ERELEMEEBELBER 2K
SR E AR BRI RIRFF IR L PR 3R A AR B E HT A
,T/\ °

BESE
AEERBAERAEVBRFE 2 XFHEERERE
BEEHNE 1802181 H

B
RAFER - AEEFL 2 2 E 542,000 7T ©

DRER
ARABFTIRPANEBRAIERER  HNEHE
47 B [ RRIERRE | —fn -

NRERE
RAREBH > REARAAESZAHERK
MEEMAM > AAR—HERF EMRAPTEE

NBFRE

3 L]

KGIMEEMEECNBE_T—LFHA
“TRLMBFEEZGAMBHRRLGRART]
ZEERRBFARE LER  EENRERITFRA
BEREML - —HEBLOKEIMEBAAER
AZEE ORBREERERRBFAG LIRS -

BMRHEEERAF
—TLEFR 075



Report of the Directors
EBRRLE

Events after the reporting period

Acquisition of a gamified mobile social networking
platform in the PRC

In February 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Glory Sino Limited entered into a share purchase agreement
("Agreement”) with independent third parties to acquire the
entire issued share capital of Loovee at a consideration of
HK$800,500,000 (equivalent to US$102,892,000).

Loovee, through its subsidiary, is principally engaged in the
development and operation of a mobile social networking
platform named “Duimian” (“ ¥1 [ “), one of the largest gamified
mobile social networking platforms in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the consideration shall be satisfied
by (i) the allotment and issue of the 150,000,000 consideration
shares of the Company at an issue price of HK$4.67 per
consideration share; and (ii) cash consideration of
HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to US$12,853,000), of which
HK$20,000,000 (equivalent to US$2,571,000) was paid on 20
January 2017 and HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to US$5,141,000)
was paid on 1 June 2017 while the remaining HK$40,000,000
(equivalent to US$5,141,000) will be paid within 90 days from the
date of completion of the acquisition. For details of the
acquisition, please refer to the circular published on 28 April
2017.

To finance the acquisition of Loovee, (i) Tingo served a notice
of loan repayment to 8Bt % (ZHENG Lianjun*) requesting his
repayment of the principal amount together with the
outstanding interest on 27 February 2017, and Tingo has
received the loan repayment in the principal of HK$46,680,000
(equivalent to US$6,000,000) on 30 June 2017; and (ii) the
Company drew down a loan from a Director of HK$30,000,000
(equivalent to US$3,856,000) on 23 May 2017 pursuant to the
loan agreement dated 21 March 2017 entered into between the
Company and a Director.

*  For identification purpose only
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Events after the reporting period (continued)
Acquisition of a gamified mobile social networking
platform in the PRC (continued)

The acquisition was subsequently completed on 1 June 2017.
The closing share price of the Company on the completion date
increased to HK$7.27 and the fair value of the purchase
consideration for Loovee increased to approximately
HK$1,190,500,000 (equivalent to US$153,021,000) accordingly.
Independent valuations were conducted to assess the fair value
of the identifiable net assets and goodwill as of the completion
date in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards 3 Business Combinations for the purpose of purchase
price allocation and to assess the recoverability amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the goodwill was allocated in
accordance with International Accounting Standard 36
Impairment of Assets by Roma Appraisals Limited, an
independent professional valuer. At the date of this report, the
Directors have estimated an impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately HK$358,000,000 (equivalent to US$46,000,000)
based on the valuations. Impairment assessment will be made
by the Directors again at the end of the next reporting period
and the actual financial effect could be different from the above,
the Company will issue an announcement in compliance with
the Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under
the SFO (if applicable) should the impairment assessment
indicate a material change in the actual financial result.

On behalf of the Board

ZHOU Xijian
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Hong Kong, 14 July 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the shareholders of Daohe Global Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Daohe Global Group Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 179, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 April 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 30 April 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
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consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

FARELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNBLNARERRERSIH

Impairment of goodwill

&l {E

The Group had goodwill of US$26,333,000 as at 30 April
2017 which was mainly allocated to the “sales of
merchandise” cash-generating unit (“CGU").
RZZE—EFMA=1+H " SEE£EBEMEER26,333,0003%
T EESREEAMEE | ReELEU((REELE
fl) -

The determination of recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use,
requires significant management judgement and estimates
of variables such as expected growth in revenue and gross
margins and the discount rate.
ErrkEeE A HERLEXAEREREENRSE)
FEEREBAE LB E M (AR KSERKRENELA
RERIREK) o

Relevant disclosures are included in Notes 3 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MERREBEHRN RS M RRMEI R13 -

We reviewed management’s assessment of the
recoverable amount. Our audit procedures included
examining and recalculating management’s discounted
cash flow projections for the determination of value-in-
use and assessing key assumptions such as the growth
rate, expected growth in revenue and gross margin by
comparison to the historical performance of the CGU.
We also performed sensitivity analyses on the
assumptions used in the cash flow projections. Further,
we involved our internal valuation specialists to assist
us with our assessment of the methodology and the
discount rate used to determine the recoverable
amount of the CGU.
BPEEMERBE ATKRE BN E - ZHINTRE
FRREERlENTEERENNRBESRETRRINE
EEREE MEBNBReELEMNBERRG
BEXR ARRGEERREMNEETIZMH/E - HATY
BenERAMERNRRZETRRESN b - &
MERPRNITEERBRMFEECRCEEEL
A el e EEATA A RBRE -

We also assessed the related disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter (continued)

AREEXEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)

RPN EBEZNMEEREEZEE )

Income tax provision

Friswisin

The Group received protective assessments amounting to
approximately HK$173,000,000 (equivalent to
US$22,237,000) from the Inland Revenue Department in
Hong Kong (“IRD") in respect of queries on the modus
operandi of the Group and the chargeability of the profits
for the years of assessment from 2003/2004 to 2010/2011.
Objections have been lodged by the Group against the
protective assessments. In addition, Tax Reserve
Certificates amounting to HK$5,250,000 (equivalent to
US$675,000) have been purchased by two subsidiaries of
the Company in pursuit of the holdover of tax demanded
under protective assessments for those years.
AEBEREBALEEN TS = —ETMNE_FT—
/B —FIANFEEERA RGN RRAT &
A BREEERBR(HRER]) REMEFFH A 173,000,000
AT (%M 22,237,000 7T ) - AEECREEF B IR
HRE - ptoh - RRBMRMB AR E R E EHALFF
EREMEFFRAAFR N 2B - BEE(E5,250,000%8 7T (4
E1 6750005 TT) Z B % °

The Group had engaged an external tax specialist and
submitted a settlement proposal as part of negotiations
with the IRD. As at 30 April 2017, the case was still under
negotiation with the IRD and sufficient tax provision was
made. The determination of tax provisions requires
significant management judgement.
EEECRFIINBER - WIRRX—HENBEH RIERH
MERER B2 BEZT—LFWA=1AH " %E
HERGERERT AL A RHTARE - B
MIARHTEZEREIRHE -

Relevant disclosures are included in Notes 3 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MERE R BN AR A M SRR EEI R G ©
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Our audit procedures included involving our internal
tax specialists to assist with the review of the calculation
of tax provision. We also obtained and reviewed the
latest correspondence with the IRD and the tax
assessment report issued by the external tax specialist.
HIFIEZIEFF BIE R R K B K 17 B BB IR
B2t E - RATEEST EHERBRNSKINEAR
SNERER TS B R B ) B S e T s o



Other information included in the annual report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independent and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN IZBEM R E S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms. Chau Suet Fung, Dilys.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
14 July 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

M A4S N1
,Zn/T\ = iﬁfﬁ%
Year ended 30 April 2017
HE_Z—+FHA=1THIEFR

2017 2016
—E—tF NS
US$'000 US$'000
FErx FET
Note (Restated)
Biter (&)
1 ) R I B
REVENUE g 5 90,470 94,053
Cost of sales SHE A (68,851) (71,024)
Gross profit EF 21,619 23,029
Other income E A 5 288 653
General and administrative expenses —MRITBHAX (20,910) (22,285)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKMB QR W 29 62 =
Expenses in relation to —HEERWEEEY
a proposed acquisition sz (638) -
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 13 - (887)
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries fRE B AR 2 EiE 30 - (5)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT 38 R 6 421 505
Income tax expense FriSfim 9 (167) (1,118)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EERAN(FR) 254 (613)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: THIA L :
Owners of the Company RAREEA 290 (560)
Non-controlling interests FEFERT M 7 (36) (53)
254 (613)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ERAAREBERESRFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY EiEERER,(BE)
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (PAZEALZ71))
(expressed in US cents) 10
Basic (Note) NG, 0.08 (0.16)
Diluted (Note) s (M a) 0.08 0.16)
Note: Kt -
Adjusted for the effect of Share Consolidation in September 2016. Bt E—ANENABRNA S EEH F o

BMRHEEERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A ETERRR

Year ended 30 April 2017
HE_ZT—+FNUA=FTHILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —ERF
Note US$'000 US$'000
5T FEx FET
] | | | |
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEER(BR) 254 (613)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hie2mE (BE) WA
(LOSS)/INCOME
Other comprehensive (loss)/income to HE B D AT B2 HAib
be reclassified subsequently to 2| (B18) WA :
profit or loss:
Fair value gain on an available-for-sale —IEA[#tHESREE
financial asset NEEWES 14 - 109
Exchange differences: M AR
Translation of foreign operations W E G INE TS (126) 80
Reclassification adjustments EHORRE
— disposal of a subsidiary - HE—RHBAF 29 (4) =
— dissolution of subsidiaries AN NG 30 - 5
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HigEHoBEBa i
to be reclassified subsequently to 2m (&8) WA
profit or loss (130) 194
Other comprehensive loss nottobe  HEfT@EHHBEEIBR
reclassified subsequently to profit Hih 2 mEE
or loss:
Remeasurements from defined EREfEAEElZ
benefit plan = E 25(a) (27) (51)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FEHMZE(FB) WA
(LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR (157) 143
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FE2XERA(BHE) B
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 97 (470)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: TH AL :
Owners of the Company PN/NCIEZ DN 131 417)
Non-controlling interests R (34) (53)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FE2EBA(BHE)#HE
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 97 (470)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR MO R

As at 30 April 2017
RZE—+FOA=+H

2017 2016
—E—+tEF —ERF
Note US$’'000 US$'000
B 5T FEn FET
1 [ N N
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R MRS 12 269 416
Goodwill B 13 26,373 26,857
Available-for-sale financial asset At ESRIEE 14 229 229
Investment in a joint venture R—REENAIZIE 15 10 10
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries W EERKT B A Rl & 16 2,571 -
Deposits Be 21 303 =
Deferred tax assets FEETRIRE E 17 12 10
Total non-current assets IERENEEARTR 29,767 27,522
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories & 18 52 =
Loan receivable FEWE X 19 6,000 =
Trade receivables FEEB 5 BERN 20 5,390 4,392
Prepayments, deposits BRHRIE - me REAM
and other receivables FE U FxT8 21 3,360 3,010
Cash and cash equivalents fﬂﬁ&fﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ B 22 14,797 24,956
Total current assets MENE EBRE 29,599 32,358
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables JEE SR 23 4,659 5,100
Accruals, provisions and EEER - BEREAM
other payables FEf FRTE 24 9.786 10,936
Tax payable FEIHEIE 2,480 2,388
Total current liabilities B R AR 16,925 18,424
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 12,674 13,934
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEEZLFERABARE 42,441 41,456
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Post-employment benefits & B iR R1EF 25 553 512
Provision B 24 1,228 =
Total non-current liabilities EREEELRRE 1,781 512
NET ASSETS EERE 40,660 40,944
EQUITY e
Share capital R& 7R 26 14,128 14,128
Reserves B 26,537 26,890
Equity attributable to RABMER A
owners of the Company FEfG RS 40,665 41,018
Non-controlling interests RIS 2 (5) (74)
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 40,660 40,944
ZHANG Qi R WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EE &
Director % Director %

BMRHEEERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—H— N7 ZA-
/j_\ T / N\ /g %j] %
m

Year ended 30 April 2017
HE_Z—+FNUA=FTHILFE

! /! ____________________________________________________________|
Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEEARE
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share Capital asset  Exchange Non-
Share Share  option  Special redemption revaluation fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve’ reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total interests  equity
e
Rt  BRE %H EARE  SREE EXRD RE FER B
s HE 1 et i EfRE e B gt Bi BE
Note ~ USS'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000
i3 T&n  TEn TR TEr FEr TEn TEn TEn fER TEn FEn
/! | | ________________________________________________________________________|
At 1 May 2016 RZE-~E1A-A 14128 19,242+ 141 184 48* 109* (1o 7,176+ 41,018 (74) 40,944
Profit/{loss) for the year EEEh/(BE8) - - - - - - - 290 9% 36) 254
Qther comprehensive income/ EREMRERA/
(loss) for the year: (&tg) -
Exchange difference on translation A8 1§5M &2
of foreign operations EHEE - - - - - - (128) - (128) 2 (126)
Reclassification adjustment ENAEAR
- disposal of -HE-FIE
asubsidiary 27 9 - - - - - - @ - (&) - 0
Remeasurements from SRR A
defined benefit plan s 25(a) - - - - - - - (27) (27) - (27)
Total comprehensive income/ EERERA/
(loss) for the year (BR) g% - - - - - - (132) 263 131 (34) 97
Equity-settled share option AR f1 2 iR iE
arrangement ZH 2 - - 142 - - - - - 142 - 142
Share options cancelled by FRERRIGTH
forfeiture during the year e 7 - - (M) - - - - I - - -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHEAR bl - - - - - - - - - 103 103
Interim 2017 dividend paid BR-E—tE
BEiRE 1 - - - - - - - (626) (626) - (626)
At30 April 2017 KRBt
MA=TA 14128 19,242 212¢ 184* 48* 109 (142 6,884* 40,665 (5) 40,660
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GARNBDE

Year ended 30 April 2017
BE_ T tFHA=TALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAER AR
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share Capital asset  Exchange Non-

Share Share  option  Special redemption revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve’  reserve  reserve  reserve  eamings Total  interests equity
HHE

R ERE ¥h ARBE eRAE ERRD 7 Fi2i2) s

R ERE BB G BB EEEE 8% BN & #& A8

Note  USS000  USGO0D  USSOOD  USS000  USS000  USSO0D  USSO00  USSO00  USH000  USS000  USSO0D

W TR TAn TR TR TR TR TEn TR TR TR TAR

I e

At 1 May 2015 R-E-1%FR1A-H 13,694 10,063 - 184 48 - (95) 8694 32588 - 3588
Loss for the year EEBE = = = = = = = (560) (560) (53) (613)
Other comprehensive income/ EERHRERL/
(loss) for the year: (&ig) :
Fairvalue gainon an available- ~ —JEWEHESR
for-sale financial asset EENTENG 14 - - - - - 109 - - 109 - 109
Exchange difference on translation ~ £Eg5EK 2 [E
of foreign operations REB - - = = = = 80 = 80 = 8
Reclassification adjustment EFipEELS
~dissolution of subsidiaries - BHHEAR | - - - - - - 5 - 5 - 5
Remeasurements from defined TR 8
benefit plan EifitE 25(a) = = = = = = = (51) (51) = (1)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ EEHE(5E)/
income for the year o8 - - = = = 109 85 (611) 7 53) 70)
Issue of ordinary shares BTLER 2 400 7,852 - = = = - = 8,252 = 8,252
Share issue expenses ROBIRR - (18) - - = = = = (18) = (18)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FHBAR 20 3% 1,345 = = = = = = 1319 ) 1358
Equity-settled share option DA 1.2 g
amangement b3 27 = = 14 = = = = = 141 = 141
Final 2015 dividend paid B=E-1%
AHRE = = = = = = - (226) (226) = (226)
Interim 2016 dividend paid BNZE-RE
PR 11 - - - - - = = (681) (681) - (681)
A 30 Apri 2016 RoEAE
MA=+H 14128 19,242* 141 184* 48 109 (10 1176 41,018 (14 4094

# Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of  # FRFEERERARRE BITRAEERAAD RSB
share capital of the Company issued and the aggregate amount of nominal R HDHFRBEZ B RARRAEERE =5 -
value of share capital of subsidiaries acquired by the Company through an
exchange of shares.

These reserve amounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZEREBELCEREGAUBRARPOGEEHRE

US$26,537,000 (2016: US$26,890,000) in the consolidated statement of 26,537,000 7T (= F —7<4F : 26,890,000%7T) °
financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
= A =

FERESRER

Year ended 30 April 2017

BT +FWNA=1THILFE

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE-RF

Note US$'000 US$'000
Bt e FER FET

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& 2K IHSHE

Profit before tax B 25 A g A 421 505
Adjustments for: SERE
Bank interest income HRIT A BHA 5 (16) (14)
Reversal of impairment of an available- —IEAHEEEREE
for-sale financial asset BB R [E] 5 - (36)
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - WERRE
plant and equipment ZWEs 6 (4) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KME QR W 6 (62) =
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries = ) =N ) g | 6 - 5
Depreciation e 6 282 319
Impairment loss on goodwill EE R EEE 13 - 887
Impairment of trade receivables U E 5 8RFURE 6 155 106
Equity-settled share option expenses LARRHESZ 7 2 BE R i B R 6 142 141
918 1,913
Increase in inventories FEIEm (52) -
Increase in loan receivable JEUR B FR I8 AN 19 (6,000) -
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 2 BR SRIE 0 (1,153) (262)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TERRIR « e R EMEK
deposits and other receivables FIE (35 ), (644) 295
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables e E SRR OB d), /3 (441) 338
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, provisions and ~ fEEHE A + B K2 E b fE A
other payables I, CR ) 113 (306)
Increase/(decrease) in post-employment B ERKEFIE I, Ofd)
benefits 14 (343)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations B (FTRE) FiBIR& (7,245) 1,635
Tax paid EfTHIE (75) (763)
Net cash flows (used in)/from K EE (FfE), Ffs
operating activities IR & HEE (7,320) 872
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES R EZEFIEREFAE
Bank interest received BRI S 16 14
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME  WENRE 12 (138) (407)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - HEREE
plant and equipment FR1S3RIA 5 2
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHTB ARl 2 iEe 16 (2,571) -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries s E A A 28 (36) 24
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—XKMBARMERIE 29 637 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEEEFTFER & F (2,087) (367)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

Year ended 30 April 2017

BE—T +EMA=tHILEE

2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx =

. | | | |
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®EEZEFfEESRE

Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS I8 - 8,252
Share issue expenses RN EEAITR - (18)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company ERARATHERAZRE (626) (907)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities EEESEE (ATFE),Fr{53R & /F5E (626) 7,327
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRRELEEER

CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2), /18 s (10,033) 7,832
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#2R& MRS EEE B 24,956 17,044
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXFFH o E  FHE (126) 80
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZASREE

AT END OF YEAR £HEER 14,797 24,956
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND ReRRELEEHEBZ

CASH EQUIVALENTS EERD AT
Cash and bank balances R KIRTTHER 14,797 24,956

BMRHEEERAF
Sz by 071

—=



Notes to the Financial Statements

Br #5 i ZR MT 5
30 April 2017
“Z—t+FMOMA=+H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Daohe Global Group Limited (“Company”) is an
investment holding company and its subsidiaries (together
with the Company are collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the sales of
merchandise, the provision of procurement and value-
added services and money lending business.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 25 January
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The Company’s shares have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since 10 May
2002. The directors regard Sino Remittance Holding
Limited, which is incorporated in Seychelles, as the
holding company of the Company, and Dache Global
Investment Holding Limited, which is incorporated in
Seychelles, as the ultimate holding company of the
Company as at 30 April 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs”) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for an available-for-sale financial
asset, which has been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in United States dollars
("US$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 30 April 2017. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

LY pEs e b

30 April 2017
—ZT—+HFMWA=+H
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(if) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following amendments to
IFRSs and International Accounting Standards (“1ASs") for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of

IFRSs

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

The adoption of these revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on the financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to |AS 12

Amendments to IAS 40
IFRIC Interpretation 22

IFRIC Interpretation 23

Classification and Measurement

of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases®

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses'

Transfer of Investment Property?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments®

Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRSs®

IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

A woN =

No mandatory effective
adoption

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

date yet determined but available for

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or

2018, as appropriate

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of

the impact of these new

and revised IFRSs upon initial

application. So far, the Group is not yet in a position to

state whether these new and revised IFRSs will have a

significant impact on the Group's results of the operations

and financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
Joint venture
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control,
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of a joint venture are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investment in the
joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint venture is
included as part of the Group's investment in joint
venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 30 April. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to
those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its available-for-sale financial asset
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets and goodwill), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i)

(i)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of 5 years or
the lease terms

Furniture and equipment 3 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case
of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include an available-for-sale
financial asset, cash and cash equivalents, loan receivable,
trade receivables and deposits and other receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to the statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for

"Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term
are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets, if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate.
If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.
Objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
Impairment losses are reversed through the statement of
profit or loss if the subsequent increase in the fair value
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables and
other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling price less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a
joint venture, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:
(@) from the sale of merchandise, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;

commission income from procurement services,
when the underlying goods procured by the Group
are shipped;

from the rendering of services, reimbursement
income from customers, handling fee income and
inspection and laboratory testing income, when the
services are rendered; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments
The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 29 August 2011 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
Black-Scholes model, further details of which are given in
Note 27 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits

(1)

Pension schemes

Defined contribution pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China and other overseas
countries are required to participate in the pension
scheme operated by the local municipal
government. Contributions are made based on the
requirements of the respective local municipal
government, the contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan,
which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the scheme. The
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined separately using the projected
unit credit valuation method.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)

(1)

Pension schemes (continued)

Defined benefit pension scheme (continued)
Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
pension plans, comprising actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained profits
through other comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at
the earlier of:

° the date of the plan amendment or curtailment;
and
o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-

related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Group recognises the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation under “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss by function:

° service costs comprising current service
costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on

curtailments and non-routine settlements

° net interest expense or income
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
the reporting period is permitted to be carried
forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the end of
the reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are

approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and

declared, because the Company’s memorandum and

association and bye-laws grant the directors the authority

to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim

dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when

they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and a joint venture are currencies other than the Untied
States dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
United States dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into United States dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 30 April 2017 was US$26,373,000 (2016:
US$26,857,000). More details are given in Note 13 to the
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Loan receivable and trade and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for
impairment of loan receivable and trade and other
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit
history of its customers and other debtors and the current
market condition which requires the use of judgements
and estimates. When the expectation on the recoverability
of loan receivable and trade and other receivables is
different from the original estimates, such difference will
impact the carrying value of loan receivable and trade and
other receivables and impairment provisions in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed.
Management assesses the provision at the end of each
reporting period. The carrying amounts of loan receivable
and trade receivables and other receivables as at 30 April
2017 were US$6,000,000 (2016: Nil), US$5,390,000 (2016:
US$4,392,000) and US$1,817,000 (2016: US$1,216,000),
respectively. More details are given in Notes 19, 20 and 21
to the financial statements.

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision for tax and the
timing of payment of the related taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination is made. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets as at 30 April 2017 was US$12,000 (2016:
US$10,000). The carrying amount of tax payable as at 30
April 2017 was US$2,480,000 (2016: US$2,388,000)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 3. FEgIMAT@®
(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued) fhat 2 NHEE M (5)
Income tax and deferred tax (continued) BT 7 AT I8 (48)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more
likely than not) that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based
on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future performance of the
particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred
tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors
are also evaluated in considering whether there is
convincing evidence that it is probable that some portions
or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised,
such as the existence of taxable temporary differences,
tax planning strategies and the periods in which estimated
tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets and related financial models and budgets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and to the
extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence that
sufficient taxable profits will be available within the
utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses
carried forward, the asset balance will be reduced and
charged to the statement of profit or loss.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) sales of merchandise including garments, fashion
accessories, hardgoods and labels;

(b) provision of services including procurement and
value-added services relating to the procurement
agency business; and

(c)  money lending business.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted
profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax
except that interest income, gain on disposal of a
subsidiary, expenses in relation to a proposed acquisition,
reversal of impairment of an available-for-sale financial
asset, impairment loss on goodwill, loss on dissolution of
subsidiaries as well as corporate and other unallocated
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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A

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REFFER @)

(continued)

Money
Sales of Provision of lending
merchandise services business Total
BmiHE RARTE BEREK =X
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTER FErx FErx FER
| | | | |
Year ended 30 April 2017 HE-Z—+F
MA=+HILFE
Segment revenue: DEWE :
Revenue from REIINARFZ
external customers Wz 78,824 11,418 228 90,470
Segment results DHEEE 1,928 839 129 2,896
Interest income MESA 16
Gain on disposal of a HE—KMBARZ
subsidiary W= 62
Expenses in relation to a —IHEZRWE
proposed acquisition 3 (638)
Corporate and other T EREAM RSB
unallocated expenses Fx (1,915)
Profit before tax BR A5 AT A 421
Income tax expense PS8R (167)
Profit for the year FIEm A 254
Other segment information: HAil 7 EER :
Depreciation e 112 170 - 282
Capital expenditures BEARFAT 37 101 - 138
Impairment of JEWE 5 BRFORE
trade receivables 20 135 - 155
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
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4, REFTER (®)

Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
73 n $H AR A&t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET TET
| | | | |
Year ended 30 April 2016 HE-_ZT—KHE
WMA=+HIEFE
Segment revenue: SRk
Revenue from external customers KEINRRRE 7k 81,038 13,015 94,053
Segment results DHEEE 2,480 505 2,985
Interest income T2 WA 14
Reversal of impairment of an available- —IFA[{tHESREE
for-sale financial asset ZRER 36
Impairment loss on goodwill HEFEEE (887)
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries RE B AT 2 EE (5)
Corporate and other unallocated PEREM KRS
expenses 53 (1,638)
Profit before tax R 35 B St A 505
Income tax expense EREX (1,118)
Loss for the year FEEER (613)
Other segment information: HihnEER
Depreciation E 129 190 319
Capital expenditures BARES 166 241 407
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE ZEETORE 17 89 106

BNRFREBBRAF 197
—T—t+EFR
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION REDEER W
(continued)
Geographical information 1h 15 & k)
(a) Revenue from external customers KEINREF 7 Was
| | | |
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
US$'000 US$'000
Fxx FET
| | | |
Australia SEN 34,939 35,356
North America 3= 28,221 23,338
Africa FEM 16,995 22,821
Europe &M 4,880 6,625
Others Hih 5,435 5,913
90,470 94,053

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

EatREER RBEEPAEBZS -

(b) Non-current assets FEGEN B E

| | | |

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—ARF

US$’'000 US$'000

FEr FET
| | | |

Hong Kong EE 29,407 26,627

Others Hih 119 656

29,526 27,283

The non-current assets information above is based
on the locations of assets and excludes an available-
for-sale financial asset and deferred tax assets.
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FRETEEFZER
KEEXBREF (BR2ZERFPHEAKE RS
10% A B) 2 Wz kg1 an T

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers, which individually
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue, is set

out below:

Operating segment 2017 2016
REDTE —E—+tF kAN S
US$'000 US$'000

Fxrn TEIT

Customer A Sales of merchandise

=EA P amiHE 34,449 34,270

Customer B Sales of merchandise

%FB P miHE 20,425 15,336

Customer C Sales of merchandise

ZEC [Ehnk=i— 16,973 22,821
71,847 72,427

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WEREMUA

The Group's revenue represents the net invoiced value of
goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade
discounts; commission income, the value of services

rendered and interest income from money lending

business.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as

follows:

AEEZ WS TR E R EmBRE ME ST
MR BRHE  BMEBA - BRERBZE
BEREREBZFBHBA -

AERE 2 et M EMBAZ DTN

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
| | | |
Revenue W 2%
Sales of merchandise EEEEEkS 78,824 81,038
Commission income Hae A 11,409 13,010
Interest income from money BEREB
lending business MBWA 228 =
Rendering of services RS 9 S
90,470 94,053
Other income Hug A
Bank interest income HRITHEHA 16 14
Reimbursement income from customers KB &FEEENIA 4 4
Handling fee income FEEBRA 83 197
Inspecting and laboratory test income e R B R EAFEKA 100 95
Reversal of impairment of an —HAEHEEREE L
available-for-sale financial asset VERIEEE]EL - 36
Others HAth 85 307
288 653

BREREEARAT
Nl irrn 127
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBiRIER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEB Z BB ADE R TR (GEA) AT
(crediting): B8
I . I Y
2017 2016
—FE—+tF —B—RF
Note US$'000 US$'000
Bt aE FERx FEx
| | | | |
Cost of inventories sold BEFEE KA 68,636 70,699
Cost of services provided B R ARTS 2 B 215 325
Depreciation e 12 282 319
Minimum lease payments under KEHETHRERSMAK
operating leases:
Furniture and equipment NS &L 92 97
Office premises and staff quarters  WAZEBEMKETRES 2,054 2,060
2,146 2,157
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN & 292 292
Employee benefit expense EERAIMXS
(including directors’ (RIEEEHM
remuneration — Note 7): - PIEE7) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances T~ (B4 NMJERL 12,500 12,830
Staff welfare and benefits B ITRH &Ett 1,341 1,612
Pension scheme contributions” RIKEET SR
— defined contribution scheme - ERH KRGS 393 546
— defined benefit plans — EFER AT S 25 16 25
14,250 15,013
Equity-settled share option expense ARE#E S 1+ 2 BERR 1 & 142 141
Foreign exchange differences, net [ 5, = 58/% 50 95 138
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 13 - 887
Impairment of trade receivables R E 58k FURIE 20 155 106
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BE KK
plant and equipment Z Wz (4) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XRWEA Rz W 29 (62) -
Expenses in relation to a —IAERWEEE
proposed acquisition ZFZ 638 =
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries &M /B A Al 2 E5 18 30 - 5
A At 30 April 2017, the Group had no material forfeited contributions A RIBE—+FMA=1H  KEBWFEE KR
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in WER R ST RIS A Y R R 2R (=B — N -
future years (2016: Nil). ) o
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 7. EEFHMH

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant KEEZERIE J: m #8781 %5 BN A Ef E
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the 383(1)(a) * (b) EOEEAR(REEZS
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the leﬁnﬁﬂ)%ﬁj J 2EBE T #: FE 2 T = H I
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of e

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+F —T—REF

USs$'000 US$'000

Group TEE FEr FET
I T T

Fees e 176 201

Other emoluments: Hi & -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBIREDH R 1,225 1,034

Pension scheme contributions EINEEHEIE R 93 103

1,318 1,137

Total HaEt 1,494 1,338
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 7. EEFHM@w
The emoluments of each director are set out below: BEZEZ NS0T :
I Y Y R I Y
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonus contributions remuneration
e RER REMH  BHRETE
ne ENFG A R B
BE-Z-+t#& US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
Year ended 30 April 2017 WMA=t+HILEE SEY TER TER TER TER
| | | | | | |
Executive Directors: HITEE
ZHANG Qi wE - 46 - 5 51
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis 2EF - 558 - 56 614
HWANG Hau-zen, Basil ()  E&R() - 563 - 31 594
ZHANG Jifeng (ii) oRAEIE (ii) - 28 - - 28
ZHANG Li (i) SR F (i) - 30 - 1 31

Non-executive Director: FHITES
ZHOU Xijian AR 46 - - - 46

Independent non-executive BYFHTES :

Directors:
WANG Arthur Minshiang THx 45 - - - 45
LAU Shu Yan (ii) 2081 A (i) 9 - - - 9
ZHANG Huijun (i) REE (i) 9 - - - 9
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (iv) FEDT (iv) 36 - - - 36
WONG Chak Keung (v) EER () 14 - - - 14
HENG Victor Ja Wei (vi) TR 4 (vi) 16 - - - 16
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS (vii) TULLENERS (vii) 1 - - - 1
176 1,225 - 93 1,494
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7. EEFHMw
I I I I R Y
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees inkind bonus contributions remuneration
\ e 2R KRB RIKS5TE
e EMHE TE4r SR Fokai]
BE_ZE—~F US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000
Year ended 30 April 2016 mA=+HILEE TET TET T TEr FET
| | | | | | |
Executive Directors: HITES:
ZHANG Qi KRB - 46 - 5 51
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEF - 558 - 56 614
HWANG Hau-zen, Basil BER = 420 = 42 462
ZHANG Li (jii) A (i) - 10 - - 10
Non-executive Director: FHITES
ZHOU Xijian AR 46 - - - 46
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
Directors:
WANG Avrthur Minshiang THk 44 = = = 44
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (iv) HZRT (v) 55 = = = 55
WONG Chak Keung (v) BER () 19 = = = 19
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS (vii) TULLENERS (vii) 37 - - - 37
201 1,034 - 103 1,338
Notes: Mzt -
(i) Resigned on 11 January 2017 and remained as an employee of the (i) E(‘:? ‘Ei A Jr HEHE  WRERAEER

— T+ EFE A+ HIE PRSEEE
ﬂ%fi$%l§$&ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁ’]#fr@ﬂ&ﬁ1“

Group until 27 January 2017. The amounts above include his BEE—
remuneration and compensation during his tenure as a director and RE
an employee of the Group.

(ii) Appointed on 11 January 2017. The amount above includes only his (i) RIBE—+F—H+—HEZFE LB ES
remuneration during his tenure as a director. EREETESHENHM -

(i)  Appointed on 8 April 2016 and resigned on 12 July 2016. The (iii) R=F— /\i@ﬂ/\aﬁ RE - R =T —F
amount above includes only his remuneration during his tenure as a +tA+ AT LS HEEBEREETIEZES
director. AR AR o

(iv) Resigned on 21 December 2016. The amount above includes only (iv) E@:?*/‘Tng A=+ —HEEES - it
his remuneration during his tenure as a director. HEAENHEETESHMOEH -

(v) Appointed on 1 November 2015 and resigned on 11 August 2016. (v) RZZE—HF+—B—HEZE ITR_F—AX
The amount above includes only his remuneration during his tenure FENAT—HEE  FSHEBENEEEE
as a director. FEHBBHM o

(vi)  Appointed on 11 August 2016 and resigned on 11 January 2017. vy RZZT—XFN\A Jr HEZE  WHR=ZF—+

F—AT—HEME

(viij)  Ceased to act as a director on 5 May 2016. The amount above vi) RZZE—A"FHARATHECES Ll
includes only his remuneration during his tenure as a director. EaERNEEEESHRERH -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived ERNBEEERESRSHETANSHN T

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year BE(—ZE—XRE: &|E) o

(2016: Nil).

During the year ended 30 April 2017, no emolument was REBE-—T—+FNA=1THILFE  T&E

paid to or receivable by any of the directors as an AT AEES A EMA L EAENERR

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as IMBEREBRE 7 KB - SEANEBEMK
compensation for loss of office as a director of any ENRIvEESRABEAEETIERE Y (TME

member of the Group or of any other office in connection Mo BT 7 BABE (B (=T — /N ) o

with the management of the Group (2016: Nil).
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8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2016: two) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 7 above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining three (2016: three) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

EfusEHFHES
FRAUESHFHEEREML(ZT—X
FoMA)ES  EFMFBEN EXME
7oFERN HBAZM(ZT—R"F: =) ¥
ARRESHITREH Z Z2FHMER 25
BT

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEnx FET

- | /] |
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %% - 285 X EWF| 708 791
Performance related bonuses FIRHMATEAT 100 45
Pension scheme contributions BRI FTEIEFKR 9 9
817 845

The number of non-director and non-chief-executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following bands presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") is as follows:

R e FE = RIFTTRAEEE R IAE T
22 HHBIATEBENAZINT

Number of employees

ERAY
2017 2016
—g—tF  —FAE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
(equivalent to US$128,535 to
US$192,801)

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
(equivalent to US$192,802 to
US$257,069)

HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000
(equivalent to US$257,070 to
US$385,604)

192,801 % 7T)

257,069 % 7T)

385,604 & 7T)

1,000,001 # 7T & 1,500,000 7T
(FZM 128,535 T8

1,500,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 7 7T
(FZEMN 192,802 L&

2,000,001 7 7T 2 3,000,000 7% 7T
(ZER 257,070 E

During the year ended 30 April 2017, no emolument was
paid to or received by any of the five highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Group (2016:
Nil).
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FiISHMxX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEMESTDIRBEFARNEBESE 2 ATE
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits REMIR165% (ZF—/NF  16.5%) 2
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits WMERGTERE - BBEAIMDER 2 FERT = T
assessable outside Hong Kong have been calculated at HMIBRIRBEAEB S EMERAER 2T
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdiction in which the BMERAE -

Group operates.

2017 2016
—EB—+F —E-RF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
1 . Y
Current BN EA
—Hong Kong -B8 153 153
- Outside Hong Kong — BN R 49 68
Net (overprovision)/underprovision BEFE (GBRERE),
in prior years BETRRE (33) 895
Deferred (Note 17) EFE(EE17) (2) 2
Total tax expense for the year NEEHIAM T 858 167 1,118
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit BARAPNIZANN A REKZEHE AR FTE A
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in R EEMEAENBR B AR 2 518
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are B EIR BB RAE s HIER S 2 BRI
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates are T:
as follows:

2017 2016
—F—tF —TFRF
US$’'000 US$'000
FER FET
1 N
Profit before tax B 75¢ A& A1 421 505
Tax at the statutory tax rate of R165% M EEMEGTE 2
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) B (ZZ—/NF : 16.5%) 69 83
Adjustments in respect of current tax 3B 1E BRFEI RN B I8 2 B B
of previous periods (33) 895
Effect of different rates for companies ~ RE M AR R 4L EFH)
operating in other jurisdictions NEERATRHRE s ZE 71 69
Income not subject to tax BIAEFRFUA (1,190) (1,477)
Expenses not deductible for tax IE kiR 1,255 1,479
Tax losses utilised from previous periods &) &4 HAfE 2 A E 18 (60) (17)
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 T IEE1E 37 43
Others HAh, 18 43
Tax expense for the year REERIIAR X 167 1,118

ENIRKEBGR AR
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Up to the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group received
protective assessments amounting to approximately
HK$173,000,000 (equivalent to US$22,237,000) from the
Inland Revenue Department in Hong Kong (“IRD") in
respect of queries on the modus operandi of the Group
and the chargeability of the profits for the years of
assessment from 2003/2004 to 2010/2011. Objections have
been lodged by the Group against the protective
assessments. In addition, Tax Reserve Certificates
amounting to HK$5,250,000 (equivalent to US$675,000)
have been purchased by two subsidiaries of the Company
in pursuit of the holdover of tax demanded under
protective assessments for those years.

In April 2015, with the assistance of an external tax
specialist, the Group submitted a settlement proposal as
part of negotiation with the IRD in relation to this case.
Subsequent to the submission to the IRD, the Group kept
close dialogue with the IRD and understood that the IRD
required additional evidence from the Group to further
assess the tax position. At the close of the year end, the
case was still under negotiation with the IRD. Despite the
unknown outcome, the Group is of the view that sufficient
tax provisions have been made in the financial statements
based on the information available.

. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to owners of the Company, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, after taking into account the Share Consolidation in
September 2016.

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
issue for the years ended 30 April 2017 and 2016.
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10. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 10. BRER(EB)
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) FREARNEBERF,(EE) HIRELTH
per share are based on: EEE

11.

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
(Restated)
(18 &)
1 Y I
Earnings/(loss) BF, (E8)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the 7N &G AJE(G
Company (US$'000) smFl, (E518) (FET) 290 (560)
Weighted average number of LR 2 TS5 8
ordinary shares
Weighted average number of ordinary  FRE3/TEERZ
shares in issue during the year hnaEFH e (FRR) (M aE)
('000) (Note) 353,198 351,404
Note: B
Adjusted for the effect of Share Consolidation in September 2016. ERZT—ANFNLARGEHNZEEHAE -
DIVIDEND 11. RE
| | | |
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
US$'000 US$'000
FER F=ET
! | | |
Interim, paid, of 1.38 HK cents B HR AR B AR T B AL
(2016: 1.5 HK cents (Note)) 1388l (ZF—RF
per ordinary share 1.5 (HfaE)) 626 681
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final EETERREBEETE—+tFWOA=THI
dividend for the year ended 30 April 2017. FRIRN RIS ©
Note: Bzt -
Dividend for the year ended 30 April 2016 was adjusted for the effect of BE_ZT—ARFHA=ZTHLEFEZREER =T —X
Share Consolidation in September 2016. FRARNEH 2 HEBIELTE -

ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@i137
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% BERRE
! !

Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEMEEE BRRRE RE CE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
S TEx TEx TR
| | |
30 April 2017 “Z-tFMA=+AH
At 1 May 2016: RZZ—R¥LA—-HB:
Cost KA 2,058 3,750 367 6,175
Accumulated depreciation Z:tihE (1,954) (3,457) (348) (5,759)
Net carrying amount REFE 104 293 19 416
At 1 May 2016, net of RZZ—RFRA-8"
accumulated depreciation MR RHTE 104 293 19 416
Additions e 17 121 - 138
Disposals HE - (1) - (1
Depreciation provided during the year AN B &1 & (108) (156) (18) (282)
Exchange realignment ERaEGE 1 (2) (1 )
At 30 April 2017, net of R-E—t&MA=+H"
accumulated depreciation MR 2HTE 14 255 - 269
At 30 April 2017: RZZ—+FMA=+A:
Cost %N 1,876 2,19 364 4,431
Accumulated depreciation 2:tinE (1,862) (1,936) (364) (4,162)
Net carrying amount REEE 14 255 - 269
30 April 2016 —E-XEMA=+H
At 1 May 2015: RZZE-LFRA-H:
Cost DN 1,874 3,899 371 6,144
Accumulated depreciation e (1,855) (3,664) (291) (5,810)
Net carrying amount REFE 19 235 80 334
At 1 May 2015, net of N T il =
accumulated depreciation Hk2:rE 19 235 80 334
Additions NE 193 214 - 407
Disposals = = 2 = W)
Depreciation provided during the year ANF [ B &1 E (108) (151) (60) (319
Exchange realignment [EH AR = 3) M &)
At 30 April 2016, net of RZE—RERA=FH"
accumulated depreciation MR RHTE 104 293 19 46
At 30 April 2016: RZZ—RENA=+H:
Cost A 2,058 3,750 367 6,175
Accumulated depreciation Z:tihE (1,954) (3,457) (348) (5,759)
Net carrying amount REEE 104 293 19 416
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. Sales of merchandise;
. Provision of services; and
. Others

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has
been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by senior management. There are a number of
assumptions and estimates involved in the preparation of
cash flow projections for the period covered by the
approved budget. Key assumptions include the expected
growth in revenues and gross margin, timing of future
capital expenditures, long term growth rates and selection
of discount rates. Management prepares the financial
budgets reflecting actual and prior year performance and
market development expectations. Judgement is required
to determine the key assumptions adopted in the cash
flow projections and changes to key assumptions can
significantly affect these cash flow projections. The
discount rates applied to the cash flow projections for
sales of merchandise and others are 11% (2016: 11%) and
10% (2016: 15%) respectively. The estimated growth rate
used to extrapolate the cash flows of the cash-generating
units beyond the five-year period is no more than 3%.

13. GOODWILL 13. B8
| | | |
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
US$'000 US$'000
FER FETT
1 e Y I
At 1 May, net of accumulated impairment 7AF A —B - 1k 2HRE 26,857 26,333
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 28) Wi R B /a8 2~ =) (BT 5% 28) 40 1,411
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 29) HE—KMEB A (MFE29) (524) =
Impairment during the year FNRIE - (887)
At 30 April, net of accumulated impairment AU A =+H * 1k 25HRE 26,373 26,857
At 1 May: REA—AR:
Cost BN 34,867 36,238
Accumulated impairment 2:HRE (8,494) (9,381)
Net carrying amount BT FE 26,373 26,857
Impairment testing of goodwill BB E R
Goodwill has been allocated to the following cash- FEBESEZ TIREES ELIERER
generating units for impairment testing: A

e  HEmEE:
o RRERE R
o Hfts

ReEEFBNMAIRESERIEEFERE
EET FHRERIASHEEEL AN
BEEAEEEHNAESRERAGE - £
BEEHETEEFEB A RS RETAR
HRREBREZ LM - TEBRZRERER
FEREZBHEER  RRKEAFEZ 2 KHE
M REPERERAIRE 7 RE - E1RER
A RMEBRRUAFEFERRERTSEERER
HBBEYE - RETRESRETARFTEA
ZEEBRINTEELHE  MEEREL
EFHHZEHST2BNEEATE - Bm
HERHEMMIRES RSB AIRANBIE RS
AAENB(ZZFE—NF  11%) R10% (==
— NG 1 15%) c R A FHUINR S ELE
BURESREMBNERIERETEN3% -

BMRHEEERAF
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13. GOODWILL (continued)

In the prior year, the Group recognised an impairment
loss of US$887,000 in connection with goodwill arising
from the acquisition of a 60% interest in &I B Z fE
% & & E B8 R 2 7 (Shenzhen Guo Cai Sheng Tang
Investment Co. Ltd.*) (“Guo Cai Sheng Tang”). The
impairment was made based on the results of impairment
tests for the goodwill using their values in use in
accordance with IAS 36.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating units is as follows:

13.

[EE3E))

RBAFER  A&ERKBEFMBERSE
EREEEHFRAR ([BRBE]) 60% s
MEE 2 B2 R EEE &887,0005 7T °
ZERAETRERE S ER F 365 IR
FREEEEREIRERMIEL -

PEESRSELBUNPE CREABEN
T

Sales of merchandise  Provision of services Others Total
Hm#EE RERY Hth Rt
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt T F ZB-tF T F ZB-tF T F 2Bt T RF
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  USH000  US$'000  US$000  US$'000  US$'000
T¥x TET  FEr TER O FER FER OFER TER
1 I I ) I
Goodwill = 26,333 26,333 - - 40 524 26,373 26,857
14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 14. AtHESRERE
1 Y I
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
US$'000 US$000
Fxx FET
1 Y I
Beginning of the year FH) 229 84
Revesal of impairment credited to the FARFFABZR
statement of profit or loss ZREREE]
during the year - 36
Fair value gain credited to the other FRFFAHMEENE
comprehensive income during the year A Bz - 109
Club membership, at fair value e (R AYE) 229 229

The fair value of the club membership is determined with
reference to the market price quoted for the relevant club.

SRERNATEDNK2EEREM Mm%
WERETE -

* il

For identification purpose only
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15. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 15. R—REEQRAZRE

I T Y

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

US$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET
I . Y

Share of net assets FELEEFE 10 10

10 10

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows: REBALDNBZHBMT ¢

| | _______________/ ____________________| |
Percentage of

EEED
Place of

Particulars of registration Ownership  Voting Profit  Principal
Name issued shares held and business interest  power  sharing activities
£ FEERTROZFE SMREKLH FiglE REERE BISE TEEHR
./ | | ____________________| |
CSC Consultancy Co., Ltd.  Registered capital of ~ People's Republic of 50 50 50  Dormant
IR ABBAR RMB1,500,000 China LEER

FERARE HEARAHE

1,500,000 7T

The investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by the R—REL AT ZIHETI RN FIREERES o
Company.
The following table illustrates the financial information of TRELATBEAZAEBRLEL AT ZHE
the Group's joint venture which is not material. BH o

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FEr
1 e Y I
Share of the joint venture's loss EheEERAFEBER
for the year and total FEXHEBEER
comprehensive loss for the year - -
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERALERRIZREZ
Group's investment in the joint venture  42BRE{E 10 10

BRRREBBRAR 14
—T—t+EFR

—=
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16. DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARIES

Glory Sino Limited (“Glory Sino”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a share purchase agreement with
independent third parties, pursuant to which Glory Sino
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Loovee Holdings Inc. (“"Loovee”), at an
aggregate consideration of HK$800,500,000 (equivalent to
US$102,892,000).

The consideration shall be satisfied by (i) the allotment
and issue of the 150,000,000 consideration shares of the
Company at an issue price of HK$4.67 per consideration
share; and (ii) cash consideration of HK$100,000,000
(equivalent to US$12,853,000). A deposit of HK$20,000,000
(equivalent to US$2,571,000) was paid on 20 January 2017;
HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to US$5,141,000) was paid on 1
June 2017 and the remaining HK$40,000,000 (equivalent
to US$5,141,000) will be paid within 90 days from the date
of completion of acquisition.

1 42 Daohe Global Group Limited
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6. WBHBAR 2&EE

Glory Sino Limited ([Glory Sino]) (— MR
RBEREAHSFMKZZBRAF  BAA
RAlz2EMBAR) BB E=FFIE
Bt - Bt Glory Sino BRI EEE
Loovee Holdings Inc. ([Loovee]) K) & ZF 2
BITIRAN - 4B 4 800,500,000 7% 7T (FH %
74 102,892,000 7T) °

REZUTARIZMN : (VRERRERS
4.67 7 JT H) B 17 B B2 2 2 3% 97 150,000,000
BARXBRERKG: KRR E
100,000,000 7% 7t (A8 7 12,853,000 7T ) °
#% < 20,000,000 7t (#5511 2,571,000 7T)
ERZZFE—tt&F—A=+H8X:
40,000,000 7T (A1 5,141,000 €70 ) E R
—_E—+tHFRNA—HXH mMEHET
40,000,000 7% 7T (FHE A 5,141,000 E7T) #7A
UeBE 5e Rk B BIRE 90 B N A »
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 17. EEBIEEE
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are FNELEHIBEEZ EBWMT ¢
as follows:

1 [ N
Decelerated tax Decelerated tax

depreciation depreciation

allowances allowances

WEBIE BRTRIR

ERE TERE

2017 2016

—E—+tF —ZE-REF

US$'000 US$'000

FER FET
| | | |

At beginning of year REH] (10) (12)

Deferred tax (credited)/charged to FARBRERP GTA) Ik
the statement of profit or loss during ZEIERIE (HEE9)
the year (Note 9) (2) 2
Gross deferred tax assets at end of year A FRZIELETRIBE ERE (12) (10)
INVENTORIES 18. #&

I . Y

2017 2016

—E—tF —T-RE

US$'000 US$'000

FER Fx=T
I . Y

Finished goods UK 52 =

BREREEERAT
s mit AHEES
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19. LOAN RECEIVABLE 19. EWER

On 15 November 2016, Tingo Consulting Company
Limited (“Lender”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a loan agreement with ESH 5
(ZHENG Lianjun*) (“Borrower”) and Xin Kai He Trading
Co., Limited (“Guarantor”), whose equity is wholly-owned
by the Borrower, in relation to the provision of a loan
("Loan”) in the principal amount of US$6,000,000
(equivalent HK$46,680,000). The Loan was drawn down by
the Borrower on 7 December 2016. Pursuant to the terms
of the loan agreement, the Borrower shall repay the Loan
on a date which is the earlier of (i) the fifth anniversary of
the Loan utilisation date and (ii) the date on which
demand for repayment is made by the Lender. Besides,
the Borrower may prepay the Loan in whole or in part,
together with all accrued or unpaid interest thereon,
without penalty or premium at any time after the first
anniversary of the Loan utilisation date. The Loan carries
interest at 9.5% per annum and is secured by a share
charge provided by the Borrower in favour of the Lender
in respect of the entire issued share capital of the
Guarantor.

The Loan was repaid on 30 June 2017 according to the

notice of loan repayment made by the Lender to the
Borrower on 27 February 2017.

* For identification purpose only
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:
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20. EWWE ZERX

RBER - BEESRFIZEZERRAZIE
e

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

US$’'000 US$'000

FER FE7T
| | | |

Within 30 days 30 KA 2,742 2,967

31 to 60 days 31E 60K 953 369

61 to 90 days 61 290K 321 469

91 to 365 days 91 & 365K 1,622 782

Over 1 year Bl —F 132 46

5,770 4,633

Impairment A (380) (241)

5,390 4,392

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally 60 to 90 days. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivables balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing. The carrying amount of the trade
receivables approximates to their fair value.

AEBRTFPZESEREIEUNEETAE
17 EHEP —REFERENKE - 8
H—RBOENK - BEATFHERRE
BEREE - NREBBRE AR E 2 YRR
MEFEBRIES) - WRBEEEENP - UF
EREEERR - s REEEE R A
R R 88 - AN Bt KU E 5 AR 5K
EHBAEMERRNEREEMINREER
i o FEIKE BERRTIAEHHAE - BIKRE 5B
R REEREAFERE -
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

20. EWEZERR @)

EWE R REREBEFINT

2017 2016

ZE—tF —EREF

US$'000 US$'000

FEn FETT
| | | |

At beginning of year REA] 241 144

Impairment losses recognised (Note 6) B #ERBEEE (K15E6) 155 106

Amount written off as uncollectible eV =R CIE ] (14) (35)

Exchange differences bE 5 =58 (2) 26

At end of year RELR 380 241

The individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate carrying amount before provision of
US$380,000 (2016: US$241,000) relate to customers that
were in financial difficulties or were in default of payments
and the receivables are not expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

1 A AR T 4218 /&3 380,000 70 (ZF — 71
F : 241,000 7T) EY 1 Bl R (B & 5 & Wk AR 5K
DEEBMGNELEEEERRZETFE
B R ERMERSRER AR KD -

AR BEREZEBKE F R BRE DT
T

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

US$'000 US$'000

FER FET
| | | |

Neither past due nor impaired I 8 B ORI (E 3,438 2,373

Less than 3 months past due wE DR =18 A 1,750 1,835

3 to 6 months past due Bl = 2= 758 A 202 184

5,390 4,392

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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21.

22.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
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21. ARARE  REREMERKIA

2017 2016

—E—+tF —T—REF

US$'000 US$'000

FEx FET
| | | |

Prepayments IR 1,074 1,269

Deposits B 772 525

Other receivables Hih el IE 1,817 1,216

3,663 3,010

Non-current: deposits ERD e (303) -

3,360 3,010

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

A EEBEEWEBEASRE © 5T A LRz
T RVEES EET R QR RUGRIRA

22. RERREEEEE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx F=T

Cash and cash equivalents

e MREFERA

14,797 24,956

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
amounted to approximately US$1,176,000 (2016:
US$453,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under the People’s Republic of
China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RBEHR - AEEAARKEIIEZRE R
RITHEERK 1,176,000 T (T — R F:
453,000%7T) ° ARMTA] B R SE A
B - A REBEPEARKMBZINEE
BEPINAEE  SERNEERERE A&
B B R ERRETINE LR ES Z RITH
ARBHILABEMER

RITFRRERRITERFRAE 2 FEF
KB - MHMEMERcFRAR—BE=
BATE  REAKEZAEREHTEM
T BRERHERER N R L o |RITHE
BRTVF RN BT IR HIRCSR (B R IFIRTT ©

BMRHEEERAF
S rag 14/
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23.

24.

TRADE PAYABLES 23. ENE SR

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of RMERR  BNESRRIEBEZAH R
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BT

follows:

2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
US$'000 US$'000
FER F=ET
! | | |
Within 30 days 30RHAA 4,022 4,594
31 to 60 days 31 E60K 468 368
61 to 90 days 61 290K 1 2
91 to 365 days 91 & 365K 97 87
Over 1 year Bl —F 61 49
4,659 5,100
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ZERNESERFTITE L - W—MRIR0K
normally settled on 60-day terms. HABR B 18 -
ACCRUALS, PROVISIONS AND OTHER 24. EETEM  BBEREGESRE
PAYABLES
| | | |
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —ERF
US$’'000 US$'000
FER FET
1 O Y
Accrued expenses and provisions Est B R MBS 3,650 3,645
Other payables Hh FE 5K 7,364 7,291
11,014 10,936
Non-current: provision JERED - B (1,228) =
9,786 10,936
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HE A FRIETNETE - FHHRAMIEA °

average term of two months.
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25. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 25. EERAKER
1 N I R
2017 2016
—E—+tF TR
Note US$'000 US$'000
k=3 Fxx FET
| ! | ____________| |
Defined benefit plan TE R 1R FET B (@) 367 338
Other long term post-employment  H i Bi{E 8 Rk
benefits &R (b) 186 174
553 512
Notes: Bt et
(a) Defined benefit plan (a) EEBEAE
The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its AEBAEMEAERAERERYEHRETH
qualifying employees in Taiwan. Under the plan, the employees are BRI A - RIFZAE - EEFESS RN IR
entitled to retirement benefits at 3% of their final salary on RAREZ X &K S 3% 2 RINEF -
attainment of a retirement age of 55.
According to the laws and regulations in Taiwan, the Group is RBAEERIER  AEBEMNERERES
obliged to pay its employees in Taiwan, upon retirement, disability RN BERIFWAZAE BN - WREAE

or death, post-employment benefits based on the number of years
of services and final average salary. The Group carried out an
actuarial valuation as at 30 April 2017 of its obligation for post-
employment benefits payable to its employees in Taiwan.

The trustees review the level of funding in the plan by the end of
each reporting period. Such a review includes the asset-liability
matching strategy and investment risk management policy. This
includes employing the use of annualities and longevity swaps to
manage the risks. The trustees decide the contribution based on
the results of the annual review.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the
life expectancy for pensioners and equity market risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the
defined benefit obligations were carried out at 30 April 2017 by Hsu
Mao-Chin Actuary, a qualified actuary, using the projected unit
credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the
reporting period were as follows:

B R 8 RIS F R &KL T H S ARAKREA e
AEER_F—tFOA=THERAEBRERIK
BMEEET RIEEAE -

REARZERERREHZTENESKFE
ENEREEARRYRBRRERRERK
R BRERFEERSHEHEERR - ZFEA
REFEERERREMRN

Zat BIZFIR R
miERRNE(CHE

i&%/\iﬁ’ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%—‘%

TREENEEREZROMBERE TR-F
—tFMA=tTHB—SERIBEL  RIKIHE
HEBH  BRASMEEREMEEET

RBEMREBZEEZRERRAOT ¢

2017 2016

—B—+tF — N

% %
] | | |

Discount rate BRIA R 1.6 1.0

Expected rate of salary increase FERFRERE 3.0 3.0
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25. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 25. EERNKEFN @
Notes: (continued) BiEE - (48)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EREFE & (F)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at RFERRZEABRREEFRESTLOT ¢

the end of the reporting period is shown below:

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
net defined net defined
benefit benefit
Increase in rate obligations Decrease in rate obligations
EREEF EREEF
HEEHE HEERE
Fil 2238 o0 i, R4 F=H D> i, Gh2)
% US$000 % US$'000
FEx FEx
| | | | | |
2017 —T—+F
Discount rate BRIR & 0.5 (44) 0.5 48
Future salary increase AR FEWRER 0.5 47 0.5 (44)
2016 —E—RF
Discount rate BRIR R 0.5 (28) 0.5 31
Future salary increase ARFELBRR 0.5 30 0.5 (28)
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a FtiigRESHT 2 ARAERNREHREERS
method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit EAZABBIFE TN ETEEnTE
obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions METE °
occurring at the end of the reporting period.
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of WEABRRER B ERAZENT

profit or loss in respect of the plan are as follows:

2017 2016

—ZE—tF —TRF

US$'000 US$' 000

FER F=7
| | | |

Current service cost B ARG AL A 13 13

Net interest M EFEH 3 12

Net benefit expenses recognised in PTG X HERR 2 fa F A SOF 58
administrative expenses 16 25
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25. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 25. EERAKER @)
Notes: (continued) MIsE : (8)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EREFE & (F)
The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair ERENEEREEEZATEZESHNT -

(b)

value of plan assets are as follows:

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in

Pension cost charged to profit or loss other comprehensive income
REBRIKZEKERK HER2ERAENBYE/ (BB
Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes Sub-total
arising from  arising from included in
Current Sub-total changesin  changes in other
At beginning service Net included in Benefit  demographic financial ~ Experi prehensive  Contributi Exchange Atend
of year cost interest profit or loss paid pti pti ] income by employer realignment of year
AngitER  HBER AR
b TARER RBEL,  BBELEZ 2EHA

WE BERA  HE¥E 2Nt BHEN RNRB  RESD  ARER Nt B ENER RER
USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS'000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS'000  USS000 US000  US§000
TiL TiL TiL TET TET T&T iR TiR TiR TiL TiL TiL
[ N N R N R I R ——

o7 Itk

Defined benefit obligation TE3BIEAIE( 842 13 8 2 (125) - (56) 83 27 - 52 817
Fairvalue of planassets 3 E/EEZATE (504) - (5 () 125 - - - - (39) ] (450)
Benefitlizbilty EfaE 338 13 3 16 - - (56) 83 2 (39 25 367
2016 “BRE

Defined benefit obligation EEfEAIE 84 13 16 2 @) 15 5 (18) 49 = 37 8
Fairvalue of planassets s EEEZATAE (226) = (&) (0] 3 = = 2 2 (307 8 (504)
Benefitliability EHak 5% 13 12 % - 15 52 (18) 51 (30) 29) 33
The defined benefit contributions in Taiwan are made to a fund REEz FREEMERTIF—REEERFEIE
administered by the government of Taiwan. The major categories ZESED - FTEIEEFEEANZPREREE
of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of the total plan SXFEBEERBATEZBEDLANT

assets of the centrally administered fund are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
% %
| | | |
Equity instruments AT A 40 49
Debt instruments B TE 28 31
Deposits e 18 17
Others Hity 14 3
The Group expects to contribute US$23,000 to its defined benefit AREBEHR - — N\FE2 THEEMNTEMHZ A
plan in 2018. 23,000 7T ©
The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end REBEEFK  FTEEAHNEETEAEH13IE(=
of the reporting period is 11.3 years (2016: 12.1 years). T NE1218) 0
Other long term post-employment benefits (b) HibE RS R KER
The balance represents the provision for long service payment as TR E TR B ER Y B ERES Y
required by certain jurisdictions. Termination benefits are payable B o 1R FRME S B IE R4k A BAT - S
when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date S 4 40 8 B I SR IR EN S B R T 4R R A R A
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in T o

exchange for these benefits.
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. BRA
Shares 8y
I . Y
2017 2016
—E-tE —TREF
US$'000 US$'000
FEn FEx

Authorised:

1,000,000,000 (2016: 10,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of US$0.04 (2016:

US$0.004) each (Note (d))

ERE

1,000,000,000

(ZZ—7% : 10,000,000,000) A%

BRAEC.04ETT

(ZZ—7"F : 0004ET) 2

LB (H1E () 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRME
353,197,567 (2016: 3,531,975,671) 353,197,567
ordinary shares of US$0.04 (2016: (ZZ—71% : 3,531,975,671) It
US$0.004) each (Note (d)) FREE0.04ET
(ZZ—RF :0004%7T) 2
LB (A1 () 14,128 14,128
The movements in share capital during the year are as FRARRZEEBNT -

follows:

Number of

ordinary Share

shares in issue Capital

ERITEBERH BR A

UsS$'000

FTER
| | | |

At 1 May 2015 R-ZFE—HFRA—H 684,705,279 13,694

Issue of ordinary share (Note (a)) BITE B (B3t (2) 20,000,000 400

Share Subdivision (Note (b)) Wetn 548 (B2t (b)) 2,818,821,116 -

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note (c)) WiE—RMB AR (AEF () 8,449,276 34

At 30 April 2016 and 1 May 2016 RZE—AR"FOA=1THK

—E-RFRA—HA 3,531,975,671 14,128

Share Consolidation (Note (d)) in& Bt (BYa () (3,178,778,104) -

At 30 April 2017 RZZE—tFMA=+H 353,197,567 14,128

1 52 Daohe Global Group Limited
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Shares (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 17 June 2015, a total of 20,000,000 ordinary shares (or
100,000,000 ordinary shares after Share Subdivision) were allotted
and issued to six subscribers pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the subscription agreement dated 1 June 2015 entered by and
between the Company and the subscribers. The net proceeds from
the subscription were approximately HK$64,200,000 (equivalent to
US$8,252,000).

On 22 June 2015, the shareholders of the Company approved to
subdivide the then-existing issued and unissued shares of US$0.02
each in the share capital of the Company into five subdivided
shares of US$0.004 each (“Share Subdivision”) and to change the
board lot size of trading in the shares from 2,000 shares to 10,000
subdivided shares. The Share Subdivision became effective on 23
June 2015.

On 25 November 2015, a total of 8,449,276 consideration shares
were allotted and issued to RIITTERZFREELHFR A A
(Shenzhen Guocai Lixin Investment Management Company
Limited*) and R 35 & (Wu Yueyun*) (“Vendors") as consideration
for the acquisition of a 60% interest in Guo Cai Sheng Tang by a
subsidiary of the Company. The fair value of the consideration
shares at the acquisition date was US$1,379,000.

On 26 September 2016, the shareholders of the Company approved
to consolidate the shares of the Company on the basis that every
ten (10) issued and unissued then-existing shares of US$0.004 each
in the share capital of the Company into one (1) consolidated share
of US$0.04 (“Share Consolidation”) and to change the board lot
size of trading in the shares from 10,000 shares to 1,000
consolidated shares. The Share Consolidation became effective on
27 September 2016.

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the

26. BA (@)
B0 (%)

S
@ R-B-RFEAATLR  REFAFRRES
W= B —FEAA— BATTL 2RI R

Rt RARIMANBRBHRERETEH
20,000,000/% & @ BR(sk ER KB HF A& A
100,000,000 & E i A% ) o 3R B R FE M FT1S 5K
1A 5 58 49 5 64,200,000 7% 7T (#8574 8,252,000 %
JT) °

RZZ—RAFANAZ+T=A ' ARERESES
ARARAHBREEZETNEREEHITR
REITRMFARRRSTRE(E0.004E T2
aRm((REFAD  TRROXSGZEFESR
E {7 /1 2,000 A A% £ 2 2% /% 10,000 A 45 4B A £
BROFAR—ZE—RAFSAZT=BER -

R-Z—RFE+—A=-+HB  A2AEFRIH
BRI EREEEARARRRBR(ESDE
BN BT A 8,449,276 AR ERAD - {EAKAT]
—RHIE R R B R E 60% M A(E - B
WEEH - RERKD 2 AFER1,379,000% T

RZB—RENAZ+TARE  ARARFHAR
AABBRAFE+(10) R SAREE0.004ETZE
BIIRABTEREREROAHA— () RERE
BE0.04ETT 2 &GN (TRBEH ) 2 HEA P
KA RN KGR D 2 5 F 5 E B4 10,000 4%
et B k41,0008 & G (D - BRth AR =&
—NFLAZTEBRERK-

* EH#5

BMRHEEERAF
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27. BRETE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (2011
Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company on 29 August 2011. The 2011 Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to
2021. Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the
Company’s board of directors or a committee thereof may
grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price per share of at least the higher of
(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of the offer of the relevant option; and (ii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer,
provided that the exercise price shall in no event be less
than the nominal amount of one share. Written
acceptance is required on acceptance of the grant of
options. The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme to be adopted by the Company from time
to time must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time. The
Company has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the share options in cash.

154 Daohe Global Group Limited
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ARARERER-_FT——F\A-TNLEE
ARRBRFEFRE BB —HERRE
REA—EBERESS (22 ——FBRE
8 T —FBEREFES—EBX
E-TFI AR EFE -RE-_FT——
FREEAD ARRE=ZQREFEES
A ERER T A EBALTARBARR R
7 SRRBEELRONBMEMEAR
W B RS R B — A 106 R RS A
HRBEHE R ZWHE R BRXMAEMA
B ERMAHIARQFIRGDN BRI A
A EEXA 2 FHUMmE(UARSER
%) - MEFT (B B A D ER — AR
ZHE - AERATREABEBERZARH
EEEMN - BIE—T——FERIESERAN
RE TR < ERMEMASER KA
R R TR 2 FE AR AT T B 7 31T 2 AR A B
R AEEBBARRATEHEHTRAZ
30% ° AR BWEAETE HHEEREANREIE
Bl K B R A HE -
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27. BRESE @
The movements in share options under the 2011 Share A REBFRN T ——FHEBAAETSI T 2B
Option Scheme during the year were as follows: M)

2017 2016
—B—tF NG E
Weighted Weighted

average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
(Note (a)) (Note (a)) (Note (a)) (Note (a))
¥ BRE InEEF19 FEIRiE

T8 2R 178 8

(Bt (a) (Hizt(a) (Hat(a) (Hat(a)

HK$ per share ‘000  HKS$ per share ‘000
BRET Tt BRET T
(Restated) (Restated)

(BE5) (g&5))
| | | _______________________|

At beginning of year REH] 10.00 5,000 - -
Granted during the year RERNERE - - 10.00 5,000
Cancelled by forfeiture RERBERZI

during the year (Note (b)) T (Kt b)) 10.00 (2,500) = =
At end of year RELK 10.00 2,500 10.00 5,000
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the RER » RATERBRE Z1TEBRITEER
following exercise period and exercise price: T @

Number of options Exercise price* per share Exercise period
(Note (a)) (Note (a))
BREHE BRITEE* TS
(K&t (a)) (Bt (a))
‘000 HK$
T4 BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(REY) (RE)
1 e
2,500 10.00 6 November 2015

to 5 November 2018
—E-HF+—-AKBZE
—E-N\E+-—-HFEA

@ The exercise price of the share options was subject to adjustment * fisf AN 2 R B AN i A (A B B A T AT AR S E A AR DL 2
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the g BREZTRECFHEERE -

Company's share capital.

BARBEEBFRAF
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27. BIRAESTE )
During the year, no share option was granted. In the prior FAMERLERE - LFE - BREBR
year, the fair value of share options granted was REHY A 1B A 6,587,000 78 7T (72 847,000
HK$6,587,000 (equivalent to US$847,000). The Group X)) AEBREE_ZE—+FNWA=1+
recognised an equity-settled share option expense of BIEFEHAURESNZ2ERESZ B
US$142,000 (2016: US$141,000) during the year ended 30 142,000%71:(_ £ — X4 - 141,00037T) ©
April 2017. Share option reserve of US$71,000 (2016:Nil) BRI 00ET (ZE—RE: &)F
was transferred to retained earnings for the year ended 30 ?jﬁiW‘;ﬁiﬁ)xqizﬁﬁ?%mﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬁﬁéiéﬁﬁ
April 2017 for the share options cancelled by forfeiture —tFOA=THIEFEZRERRN -
during the year.
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was B AR 5 2 BB AR 2 A B T E B
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes AR — TR ATEEEXNRE L B B ER
valuation model, taking into account the terms and =t Wt RZEEIRER 2 G RAEE -
conditions upon which the options were granted. The TRINERZEAFNEAIER

following table lists the inputs to the model used:

. | | |
6 November

Date of grant 2015
—E-AF
R BH +—AXKH
| | |
Share price at date of grant (HK$ per share) PE BB IRE(EBRET)

(Note (a)) (Kiit(a) 9.3
Trigger price (HK$ per share) (Note (a)) ERER (BRET) (K (a) 20.00
Observation days (day) Bz ag(a) 5
Expected volatility (%) i‘ﬁiﬁﬁi& & (%) 34.9407
Risk-free interest rate (%) i TSR (%) 1.1840
Expected life of options (year) Eﬁﬂx%Zﬁa‘l’EﬁﬁE (%) 3
Dividend payout (%) &2 (%) 40

The expected life of the options is based on the historical B Y AR IR IR B E — E
data over the past three years and is not necessarily EHE . KU RAIEELITEER - 78
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The Hﬁ&rpmﬁﬁg@uT{E“ﬂ Bl@ A RS2 AR 3k
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the By HEE , MR TR AR o

historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated DR ERE S S ENA AT E Y

into the measurement of fair value. g o

Notes: B -

(a) The share options under the 2011 Share Option Scheme have been (@) R —FERESEIETCEREESR -
adjusted for the effect of the Share Consolidation in September —NENABRAH S EEH R -

2016.

(b) On 1 August 2016, the outstanding share options held by certain (b) MR-B—XENB—B ZFAEA(EZEEAR
Grantees (as defined in the section headed “Share Option cEmnay ((BRESTE | —)F 5728
Scheme” on page 62 of the report) to subscribe for a total of £ 3£ 25 000,000 B& #TA 15 (A5 A 6512 2,500,000
25,000,000 new shares (or 2,500,000 shares after the Share BRAR 19 ) B 1Y SR F TR BE R A 5+ B 2 3B 1B R MR EE 5 o

Consolidation) were cancelled by forfeiture.
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28. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 19 May 2016, the Group acquired the entire
issued share capital of Tingo Consulting Company
Limited (“Tingo"”) at a consideration of HK$320,000
(equivalent to approximately US$41,000). Tingo is a
holder of a Money Lenders Licence issued under the
Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

The fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Tingo as at the date of acquisition were
as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

A5 R AR BT =
30 April 2017
—E—+FMA=+H

28. WEEMIBLR
@ RIZE—R"FREA+IB XEBEN
(B 320,0007% 7T (18 % 7 4941,000 €
T)RBRESEEREBRAR(X
BlREMPERTRAN - KRG/ —K
BB IEDIF163F HE A GHI T B HF
FETEA -

AERBERARNA RN EERAE

MAFEDT
2017
—E—tF
Note US$'000
B FEx

Prepayments, deposits and

BNF0R - mE REAM

other receivables FEW R IE 9
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMHAEEFEEE 5
Accruals and other payables FEET & A I B fth A~ FRIE (13)
Fair value of net assets acquired BEREEEFEATE 1
Fair value of purchase consideration: BEREBEATE:

Cash consideration ReERE 41
Goodwill [EES 13 40

An analysis of the net cash outflow

B PR R SR

in respect of the acquisition SRR
Cash consideration ReRE 41
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BWERe RS
acquired £EIEE (5)
36

Since the acquisition, Tingo had contributed
US$228,000 to the Group's revenue and US$66,000
to the Group's profit for the year ended 30 April
2017.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue of the Group and the profit
of the Group for the year would have been
US$90,470,000 and US$250,000, respectively.

BWEBEEUAR HE-_T—tFWQN
A=1+HIEFE  ReBHAREEBRK
= 8Bl 228,000 €T M B AN EBEEFI T
&t 66,0003 7T °

ez & R EMET - AREA KR
Ko AN 62 8 F g M) 29 Bl 4% 90,470,000
2T} 250,000 37T ©

BMRHEEERAF
S a0/

—=
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28. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

’I 58 Daohe

Annual

On 7 July 2016, the Group acquired a 51% interest in
RYIE 2z B #T e R )T E 85 & AR 75 A R 2 B (Shenzhen
Guo Zhi Dao New Energy Vehicle Sales Services Co.
Ltd.*) (“Guo Zhi Dao") at a consideration of RMB1.
Guo Zhi Dao is a company established in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") on 11 May 2016
with limited liability and its business scope includes
sale of vehicles; sale of renewable energy vehicles;
leasing of vehicles; sale of parts and power batteries
of renewable energy vehicles; sale and technological
development of renewable energy vehicle products
and accessories, renewable energy electronic
products, renewable energy mechanical products
and equipment; domestic trading, import and
export of goods and technology.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Guo Zhi Dao as at the date of acquisition
were as follows:

28. WEEHKI B A7) ()

(b)

R-ZZE-—RFLALH AEBEURK
BARE 1 TWBRINE ZEHERT
EHERBERABDTEHZED®
51% e - B Z2BR—FR_T—X
FRA+—BEFEARAMB( F
BRIz BREMERR  HEEH
BRAEMHEE MR IENHEE
MEBEHE  FERAETE G RE
BHMHE MRS EERKSE
Bt - FRERE FEM - MEEREM
EmRkRENHERRMAE : @R
8% BYEREMELAD -

BeBEREEBHNAIERIEERE
BERFEDT

2017

—E—tF

US$’'000

FTER
| | |

Fair value of net assets acquired BUREBEEEFEATE -

Fair value of purchase consideration: BEREATME:
Cash consideration ReENRE -
Goodwill BES -

Since the acquisition, Guo Zhi Dao recorded a loss
of approximately US$10,000 which was included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and did
not contribute any revenue to the Group for the year
ended 30 April 2017.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning

of the year, the revenue and the profit of the Group
for the year would remain the same.

*  For identification purpose only

Global Group Limited
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BREBFHENUNK B2B8HE0
10,000XTTHER - st ARAERR
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28. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(0

On 25 November 2015, a subsidiary of the Company
acquired a 60% equity interest in Guo Cai Sheng
Tang from the Vendors. Guo Cai Sheng Tang was
engaged in the provision of investment
management advisory services in the PRC. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy
to widen it's business scope. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was agreed at
RMB6,000,000 and was satisfied in form of shares of
the Company based on the framework agreement
dated 26 October 2015. A total of 8,449,276
consideration shares (before Share Consolidation)
were allotted and issued to the Vendors based on
the closing share price of the Company of HK$0.866
at the date of the framework agreement.

The share price of the Company increased to
HK$1.27 on 25 November 2015, day of completion
and the fair value of the purchase consideration for
the 60% equity interest in Guo Cai Sheng Tang was
increased to approximately RMB8,800,000
(equivalent to US$1,379,000) accordingly.

The Group elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Guo Cai Sheng Tang at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the 40%
identifiable net assets.

The Group incurred transaction costs of US$63,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs had
been expensed and were included in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 30
April 2016. None of the goodwill recognised was
expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.
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28. WEHEB QR @

© R=T—RAF+—A=+FEB &2
A—REBARMEHKERKRRE
60%1Ez - IR BENP R FIRE
REEEFBARY - ZWESHE A
REERRESHENREN—IBD °
WRBEEEMNEERBEAARK
6,000,0007C * Wik —E—HFE+ A
N B IR I AR A F R
FAZMA  RIEXRBZAEREARAF
BIUL T B &A% 0.866 78 TTATE -
8,449,276 IR R B R 5 (AR 1D & #HAT) B
RULEE B HARD 3% 21T o

AN
&3

HRAATR-_ZE—RE+— A
—+HRA - BWBEMKTELAE
F1.27%8 7T Bt - BRRE60%
EEHNEEREATFTENEELAZE
#9 A R 8,800,0007T (FBE 7 1,379,000
EIDI

AEBEBRIFERBRETRANE
EFER B0 B B E RN
BRRER R S40% ©

7N 55 B Bt b T Uk B BE A 63,0003 T 2
ROEA - ZERGHAB FI X
Yt AHE_TE—A"FONA=1+HIE
FEZBEESERZ BETHEAX
Ao ZEEEREH NI RS
HIR

BMRHEEERAF
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28. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(¢)  (continued) (c)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Guo Cai Sheng Tang as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

28. WEEHKI B A7) ()

(&)
BRREENRERZAIZMNEERE
BERFEDT

2016

—TRE

Note US$'000

Lz F=7
| | | |

Cash and bank balances R& MIRIT4E R 24

Accruals and other payables FEET B A I Bt T RRIE (77)

Fair value of net liabilities acquired BEEEEFEATE (53)

Less: non-controlling interests Sk FEIEARAERS 21

(32)

Fair value of purchase consideration: BERELATE:
Consideration shares KB
—issued on 25 November 2015 -RZE—AF+—A4
Z+HB®T 26(c) 1,379
Goodwill [GES 13 1,411

An analysis of the net cash flow in respect of the
acquisition of the subsidiary was as follows:

MUEN B ARIFTELENIR S RFE
DT :

2016
—E—RF
Us$'000
F=x

BEREZRYE
B BEITHERD

Fair value of purchase consideration
Less: Consideration shares issued
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

EWERE MREEFERR

1,379
(1,379)
(24)

(24)

Guo Cai Sheng Tang recorded a loss of US$133,000
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and
did not contribute any revenue to the Group for the
year ended 30 April 2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the year ended 30 April 2016, the revenue of the
Group and the loss of the Group for that year would
have been US$94,053,000 and US$799,000,

respectively.
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BHE T R"FEHA=THILLFE"
BREEESRGBEaREBTER
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ECIEY

HMzafREE T R"FOA=1
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28. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(¢)  (continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised
financial information of the Group's subsidiary, Guo
Cai Sheng Tang that had material non-controlling
interests as at 30 April 2016. The amounts disclosed

Notes to the Financial Statements
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28. BB A 7 ()
© (&)
TRV -_Z—RNFONA=+HH
BEAEERER A EBEHB AR
BREEZHBERNHEE - IEES
R AARIEL TR EE R R R EE HAT

are before any inter-company eliminations: ZEE
1 .
2016
—T-RE
US$'000
FET
| | |
Total expenses, loss for the year and BHY - FEEBBR
total comprehensive loss ZHEEEERE (133)
Current assets MENE B 6
Current liabilities mBAIE (191)
Cash flows used in operating activities and B IRIE VIS RE RIS
net decrease in cash and cash equivalents MIRE&FEIBE R FE (18)

29. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 15 August 2016, the Group completed the disposal of
60% equity interests in Guo Cai Sheng Tang to the Vendors
at a total consideration of HK$5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$643,000). The Vendors were the
shareholders of Guo Cai Sheng Tang who owned 40%
equity interests of Guo Cai Sheng Tang upon the disposal
date.

* For identification purpose only

29. HE—RKB QA
RZZE—RENATRR  AEERKEE
ERRBEONNRIETES BREA
5,000,000 7T (FHE P #643,000%E L) - B
FABRREENRR  RHEEBRHEHEEK
RIE 40% PR AE -

* E a5

BNRREBBRAR |4
—T—tEFR

—=
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29. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 29. HE—XHBAR @
I I
2017
—E—tF
Note US$'000
k3 FER
1 Y Y
Net liabilities disposed of: BEHEAEFE :
Cash and cash equivalents Re&kReEEIER 6
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R E b FE T /1B (48)
(42)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR e A 103
Goodwill Bl 524
Exchange reserve realised bE N BRI (4)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KHTB A R 6 62
643
Satisfied by: PRIV E N
Cash Re 643
An analysis of the net cash inflow in respect FLHE—RMEBE AR 2B RAFHE
of the disposal of a subsidiary DT
Cash consideration received BUEHSNRE 643
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BEHENRe RReEE
disposed of 1HH (6)
637
30. DISSOLUTION OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. BAMHE XA
I Y Y
2016
AN
Note US$'000
ik F=T
I Y D
Net assets of the subsidiaries under BB ARZ
dissolution BETFE =
Exchange reserve realised bE N BRI S5
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries RET B AR Z B8 6 (5)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalentsin ~ fREIIB AR ZIRE &
respect of the dissolution of subsidiaries Re%EER ZRAFE =
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31.

32.
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3. KEHERH

The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff AEBREBECEHELZHEMEESTHAE
quarters, furniture and equipment under operating lease B  BIES  BMMREE ZEHEZ
arrangements. The leases have varying terms, escalation FHE] - AR 2 KRN ELFENZE TR

clauses and renewal rights.

At 30 April 2017, the Group had total future minimum R-E—+FWA=+H  NEERERT
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases BN S HEN T 2E B S 2 RRRIE
falling due as follows: MEHIBIT :
I I .
Office premises and Furniture and
staff quarters equipment
MAZEBENURETIRES BRRRE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF ERF ZE—tF ZZ=—XF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEr FET FEx FET
1 I I R I R
Within one year —E R 1,238 2,107 110 116
In the second to fifth E_FERF
years, inclusive (BHEERERSE) 2,148 424 63 175
3,386 2,531 173 291
COMMITMENTS 32. A&
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed PR BR3Pt 2 A S MR EASESN - AR
in Note 31 above, the Group had the following capital RASERRERREEEME - BE KX
commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and 2 BAESE -

equipment at the end of the reporting period:

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

USs$'000 US$'000

FET FET
| | | |

Contracted, but not provided for BERT4 B KRB 95 50

BARBEEBFRAF
—T—LFFR 163
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had no
significant transactions with related parties for the
years ended 30 April 2017 and 2016.

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

33. ERAEALRS
(a) BRABISIHREREMIPOETAZZ B
AREEHE - T—tFR-_T—RF
MA=+RHILFEWEEFHEEALT

EITERRS

(b) AEEMFTEEEASZHMN

2017 2016
—E—+F —T-RF
US$'000 US$'000
FER FET
1 | | |
Short term employee benefits 7= B E B 1R A 1,225 1,034
Post-employment benefits & BRIKEH
— defined contribution plans - EREHARETE 93 103
Total compensation paid to key INFEEEEABZ
management personnel N 4R RE 1,318 1,137

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in Note 7 to the financial statements.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of the
Group's financial instruments as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets

EEHFMzE—SHBERTBERE
BIE7 ©

34. R TEEHR

AEEzSENeRTANRERRZER
B

Loans and Available-for-sale
receivables financial asset Total
BRRERTE THHESHEE &5
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tfF “TXF ZE-tf —T-E ZE-tf —TRF
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$/000
fzE FEn TEL Tin £ TEn T
| |/ | ] | | |
Available-for-sale financial ~ At E S5
asset BE 14 - = 229 229 229 229
Loan receivable EUWER 19 6,000 = - = 6,000 =
Trade receivables EREFER 2 5,390 4,392 - = 5,390 4,39
Financial assets includedin St ATERZIE - &4 R
prepayments, deposits  EfEIRFAEZ
and other receivables SHEE 21 2,589 1741 - - 2,589 174
Cash and cash equivalents B& K& EEHEE 2 14,797 24,956 - - 14,797 24,956
28,776 31,089 229 229 29,005 31,318

Daohe Global Group Limited
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35,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Financial liabilities

34. eRITEER (&)
ERBaE

I . N
Financial liabilities at

amortised cost

REBERALSIREz2EMEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note US$’'000 US$'000
Bt aE FERx FET
I . I Y
Trade payables JENE SR 23 4,659 5,100
Financial liabilities included in STAEETER - BEREA
accruals, provisions and other ENZIEzEMEE
payables 24 7,364 7,291
12,023 12,391

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as

35. TR TACZAFERAFEER

AEEEMTAZEREAENRAFEGREE
HEERNHEREMREERINOT

follows:
TREE

Financial assets

Carrying amounts Fair value
fREE AYVE
2017 2016 2017 2016
et ot —EAE e —TRE
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FET TET FER TEL

Available-for-sale financial asset A[EHESHEE

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, loan receivable, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities
included in accruals, provisions and other payables
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial asset is
determined with reference to the market price quoted for
the relevant club.

BEEENGERESLREEFEEE  BRE
F o BREZER  BNESER  fTAR
A - REFEMBUKIAZ SRBEE -
FPARETER  BELREMEMNRBAZ SR
BEZATE  HEAKREERS  RARE
B LI RRZETAZEMEERBME -

A EeREEZATENK2EZRAHE
e MiGHRERETE -

BARBEEBFRAF
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair values:

As at 30 April 2017

5. TR TAZAFERATFEER &)

TREIAEBEEHMI AL AVEFZERE
A -

BAVEREZEE

R-ZE-—tHWA=TA

| ! ______________________________________| |
Fair value measurement using

AT & IRET A FEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBMSZ BEATERE EAFUBE
HE BAE BWAE
(5—E) (B=fE) (B=FE) &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTER TER TER TR
I . .
Available-for-sale financial asset At HE & BIEE 229 - - 229

RZE—ARFNA=+H

e [ e
Fair value measurement using

ANTREETRATENE

As at 30 April 2016

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIERTIZ BAABE EANAEE
WwE BAE BAE
(B—8) (B=E) (B=E) G
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEr FTErx FTEr FTEr
1 I
Available-for-sale financial asset FJftHESRIEE 229 - - 229

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair value as at 30 April 2017 (2016: Nil).
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash
and bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations. It is, and has been throughout
the year under review, the Group's policy that no trading
in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's short term
interest-bearing bank deposits with a floating interest
rate.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risks.
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6. MBEREEBERBX

AEENTIZSRMTABER S RRITHE
7o ZFEERMIEANTIZENDIRAEED
EBEERET AKENESBHEMERE
EREBE WEERASEEEELNER
EIRALENEZRRE - RBEREF
EAR—BENR  AEEZBRRTEES
BMTA-

AEENS R TAMEENEZAR RN X
R SRR EERBRERSDE SR
%o BEERNREATEESRZEZARDN
BOR - ZBRAan R o

A= B
AEEAZNTISMNE SRR E B EARE
BRI Z BN EEHABRRITERER -

AN 30 45 5T 37 FE (T U SR 55 M1 40 LA 25

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRAPBEMEEMAIERZHEZTTERNT
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other ST - ANEEABREL A @ A N AN B R s
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax HAEGIEA BB BRI

and the Group's equity.

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RF

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) (decrease)

(decrease) in in profit before in profit before
basis points tax and equity  tax and equity

RRFE AT % R B 5 AT A
HE R fER MR
®iOmd) i CEA) O
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
. | | ] | |
United States dollar E 5 7 12
United States dollar e (5) (7) (12)

BMRHEEERAF
S rag 107
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk
The Company’s functional currency is the United States
dollar and the functional currencies of majority of the
subsidiaries are the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar. The Group's transactions, trade receivables and
trade payables are mainly denominated in these two
currencies.

As the exchange rate of the United States dollar and
Hong Kong dollar is pegged, management considers the
foreign exchange risk in this respect is not significant. The
Group has certain investments in foreign operations,
whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. However, as the net foreign exchange
exposure of the foreign operations is not significant, the
Group does not actively hedge this foreign exchange
exposure.

The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and
liabilities held in currencies other than the United States
dollar and Hong Kong dollar to ensure that net exposure
is kept at an acceptable level, and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Certain monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
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BREMEEEERBEE @

SN LB (40)
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) (decrease)
foreign in profit in profit
currency rate before tax before tax

S EE BB == BB AT 28 F B Tt ALt 7
EFA (TR #m 0Rd) 8 Cfd)

% US$'000 US$'000
FEx FETT
1 ) O Y
If United States dollar i ZETT 5
weakens against RMB ARERE 5 40 24
If United States dollar WZETTH
strengthens against RMB ARBTHE (5) (40) (24)
Credit risk EERE

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, an available-for-sale
financial asset, loan receivable, trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

(i)  Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms
are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

AEEeREE(BRRASIRSFEERR -
—HAAEHESREE BRENR  BUKE
ZER - B REMEEE) 2 EERR
TIREE T TERE A - MEARRE
FZE T AZREE -

(i)

JEWE SR
AEERRERAREERINE
=R G AREBRRRERA B
FEEMRINEFAETERAERRE
FFettdh  AEBEERHEERBURK
BiEe > FA AR EAR O ZRER
WARERX -

BMRHEEERAF
e Pry 1609
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(1)

(ii)

Trade receivables (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer/counterparty, by
geographical region and by industry sector. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group has certain
concentration of credit risk on the Group's trade
receivables, as the amounts due from the largest five
debtors amounted to approximately US$3,448,000
(2016: US$2,481,000), representing 64.0% (2016:
56.5%) of the Group's trade receivables. In order to
minimise the credit risk, management continuously
monitors the level of exposure to ensure that follow-
up actions are taken promptly to reduce the risk
exposure or to recover overdue balances. The
Group will also continuously exploit new
opportunities and forge relationships with new
customers with the aim of broadening its clientele.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements.

Loan receivable

The Group manages credit risk of the Loan through
credit analysis of the borrower and the guarantor by
reviewing the borrower’s personal assets and his
creditworthiness and performing due diligence
review of the financial position of the guarantor by
an external professional firm respectively. To
minimise credit risk, the loan is secured by a share
charge provided by the Borrower in favour of the
Group in respect of the entire issued share capital of
the Guarantor.
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36.

HEREEEBERBE®

FEERB (%)

(i)

(ii)

JEW B Z R 5 (458)

ARASER 2 RLRA REBRIT
ME=HX5  FTAEEIRERRS -
EERRNETERERR HH
& RITERER - RIRERR - K
SEREWESERBE TEPEE
MEERR B AKRKERARELY
3,448,0003£ 7L (=Z — 73 4F 1 2,481,000
E0)  EAREEERE SR 64.0%
—T—RF 1 565%) c BT RIKEE
Bk EREFEERRARKE A
TR BV ER AN ER 37T B - Il 1K R B
 ohB Rl B A R o ANEE NG
BV - WHR P E R
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IR
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. iR MEEAERKE &
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk REBESERE
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between AEENEEZERERDFARITEE &5
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of S E M EEEEE 2 R4 T -

banking facilities.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at RIBEE T A FEITIR N RO AR E B R RS
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual HRzemaERSERmT :
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

| | |
Within one year

—£R
2017 2016
—E2—tF NS
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
1 Y Y
Trade payables TEN B SRR 4,659 5,100
Financial liabilities included in accruals, &+ AfESHE A - B4E & E A fE
provisions and other payables HIEZeRARE 7,364 7,291
12,023 12,391
At 30 April 2017, the utilised banking facilities of RZE—+FWMA=+H  ARQRIETHE
US$2,240,000 (2016: US$2,782,000) granted to the ANEMEBARITEE 2,240,000 (=8
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks by — N4 2,782,000 7T) (1R TIRITHIE
the Company is repayable on demand. {RFAIR ) B ESKEHEE -
Capital management BREE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital REFEAEENTEB R ABENERRE
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to BHELEBENERERNERNL X  AYEH
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy R NRERSEREE -
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes AREFRBELKER NS HSIEEENEEL
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic WHEITHE o« AR ENER - &
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the EFA LB EREIRN ZIRE - mIREERE
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, BEANKBTHIR c EHEEBEEAZBE -
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No BREXREFREBE_ZE—+EF _T—FE
changes were made in the objectives, policies or WA=+ HI-FEfRmEes) o
processes for managing capital during the years ended 30
April 2017 and 30 April 2016.
Capital of the Group comprises all components of REBERDIERERZZFTBERD ©

shareholders’ equity.

BNRFREBBRAR 17
—T—tEFR
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. EHEEE

Acquisition of a gamified mobile social
networking platform in the PRC

In February 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Glory Sino entered into a share purchase
agreement (“Agreement”) with independent third parties
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Loovee at a
consideration of HK$800,500,000 (equivalent to
US$102,892,000).

Loovee, through its subsidiary, is principally engaged in the
development and operation of a mobile social networking
platform named “Duimian” (“ T ), one of the largest gamified
mobile social networking platforms in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the consideration shall be
satisfied by (i) the allotment and issue of the 150,000,000
consideration shares of the Company at an issue price of
HK$4.67 per consideration share; and (ii) cash
consideration of HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to
US$12,853,000), of which HK$20,000,000 (equivalent to
US$2,571,000) was paid on 20 January 2017 and
HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to US$5,141,000) was paid on 1
June 2017 while the remaining HK$40,000,000 (equivalent
to US$5,141,000) will be paid within 90 days from the date
of completion of the acquisition. For details of the
acquisition, please refer to the circular published on 28
April 2017.

To finance the acquisition of Loovee, (i) Tingo served
a notice of loan repayment to the Borrower requesting his
repayment of the principal amount together with the
outstanding interest on 27 February 2017, and Tingo
received the loan repayment in the principal of
HK$46,680,000 (equivalent to US$6,000,000) on 30 June
2017; and (ii) the Company drew down a loan from a
Director of HK$30,000,000 (equivalent to US$3,856,000) on
23 May 2017 pursuant to the loan agreement dated 21
March 2017 entered into between the Company and a
Director.

*  For identification purpose only
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37.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

Acquisition of a gamified mobile social
networking platform in the PRC (continued)

The acquisition was subsequently completed on 1 June
2017. The closing share price of the Company on the
completion date increased to HK$7.27 and the fair value
of the purchase consideration for Loovee increased to
approximately HK$1,190,500,000 (equivalent to
US$153,021,000) accordingly. Independent valuations
were conducted to assess the fair value of the identifiable
net assets and goodwill as of the completion date in
accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations for the
purpose of purchase price allocation and to assess the
recoverability amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill was allocated in accordance with IAS 36
Impairment of Assets by Roma Appraisals Limited, an
independent professional valuer. At the date of this
report, the Directors have estimated an impairment loss
on goodwill of approximately HK$358,000,000 (equivalent
to US$46,000,000) based on the valuations. Impairment
assessment will be made by the Directors again at the end
of the next reporting period and the actual financial effect
could be different from the above, the Company will issue
an announcement in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the Inside Information Provisions under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (if applicable) should the
impairment assessment indicate a material change in the
actual financial result.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AR T ZBBARRE
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
US$'000 US$'000
FEnx F=ET
I . Y
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RITB AR Z’E 42,860 36,527
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - Re kEM
receivables e SR IE 18 8
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEMEIER 430 8,622
Total current assets MENE AR 448 8,630
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Accruals FEETE 195 144
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 253 8,486
NET ASSETS EERE 43,113 45,013
EQUITY R
Share capital B& 2R 14,128 14,128
Reserves (Note) EE (ffa) 28,985 30,885
TOTAL EQUITY A 43,113 45,013
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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30 April 2017
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38. ARQ T Z BT E )

Note: HtaE -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARZ EEREQOT -
[ R N R S S S N
Share Capital
Share option redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus? earnings Total
BB BXREE
REEE e f#E BE8Es REEF st
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TExT TxxT TET FTET Fxn Fxn
[ S N S S R N N
Balance at 1 May 2015 RZZ-RERA—B&H# 10,063 - 48 9,883 1,599 21,593
Total comprehensive income  FE 2 HE A &5
for the year - - - - 879 879
Issue of ordinary shares 7T RAR 7,852 = = = = 7,852
Share issue expenses 21T (18) - - = = (18)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ui — KB A7) 1,345 - - - - 1,345
Equity-settled share option LARSHE S 1+ 2 BE S e
arrangement - 141 - - - 141
Final 2015 dividend paid BN -RFERBRES = - - - (226) (226)
Interim 2016 dividend paid BRAZZ—REPHRE = = = = (681) (681)
At 30 April 2016 RZZ—X ENA=1+AH 19,242 141 48 9,883 1,571 30,885
Balance at 1 May 2016 RZE—R"FRA—B#&H 19,242 141 48 9,883 1,571 30,885
Total comprehensive loss FEXEBELESE
for the year - = = = (1,416) (1,416)
Equity-settled share option VAR v 2 BB AR 2 HE
arrangement 27 - 142 - - - 142
Share option cancelled by FNE BRI R E
forfeiture during the year 27 - (71) - - 71 -
Interim 2017 dividend paid BENZZE—tFHHRE = = = = (626) (626)
At 30 April 2017 R-Z2—tH&MA=+A 19,242 212 48 9,883 (400) 28,985

The Company's contributed surplus represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the Company'’s shares
issued in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, the contributed surplus account of the Company is
distributable to equity holders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if () it is, or would after the payment be unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due or (i) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium account.

ARRBEHBBERBEAMEIE ZHE R R
B&tn 2 X FERBB AR R LA IR 15 75 i B 1T
ZBROEEZER - REARE-NN\—FQF
A ARRZBEMARKE RO KT RERHE
A o R ARBETIERTE
SRUEEZBRTEL DK 0) KA REE N
HraEk(\REECWEREEINERER
B BEITIRAN AR R G ERR < 485 -
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39. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

39. FEMBLRAFR

TEMBARFBET

Place of incorporation/

Percentage of

Nominal value equity attributable

of issued and to the Company

fully paid b N

ordinary share/ EERERDL

registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EEGE

BERRA/

AMRAEE HE B TEXH

Name registration and business
BMRL/
g SRR ER LY
Benchmark Profits Limited British Virgin Islands
RBEMAKE
Daohe Capital Limited Hong Kong
ENMERBRAR EA
Daohe Management Limited" Hong Kong
ENERERAR" Eh
eServices Limited Hong Kong
Eh
Ever Eagle Limited British Virgin Islands
REERRES
Glory Sino Limited British Virgin Islands
EBERRES
Golden Rules Enterprises Limited Hong Kong
BRARAT B
IGCS Group Limited British Virgin Islands
EBEMREE
IGCS International Limited British Virgin Islands
EBERREE
IGCS Limited Hong Kong
;
International Laboratory Services Hong Kong
Limited 9
Bl iR RIS BR A R
1SO International (Holdings) Hong Kong
Limited B
Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands
ERERRES
Linmark Agency (Hong Kong) Hong Kong
Limited B
Linmark Development (BVI) British Virgin Islands
Limited EEERARES

176 Daohe Global Group Limited
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US$1 - 100 Investment holding

EE RERR

HK$1 100 - Investment holding

187 RERR

HK$1 100 - Management services

187 BERS

HK$100,000 = 100 Dormant

100,000/ 7T LR

Usst - 100  Investment holding

(EY RERR

US$1 100 —  Investment holding

1357 RERR

HK$1 - 100  Investment holding

187 RERR

US$1 - 100 Investment holding

1% RERR

US$1 - 100 Dormant

1% TEEH

HK$2 - 100 Dormant

2B TEEH

HK$1 - 100 Provision of laboratory

187 services
RERTE IR

HK$100 - 100 Dormant

1007%7T TEEY

US$50,000 = 100 Investment holding

50,0005 7T RERR

HK$10,000 - 100  Procurement agent

10,0007 AR

US$1 - 100  Procurement agent

1570 AR
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39. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 39. EMBATFHE @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

1 [ e [
Percentage of

Nominal value equity attributable
of issued and to the Company
fully paid VNG|
Place of incorporation/ ordinary share/ ElERER D
Name registration and business  registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BRTRAR
ERARL/ EBERRA/
£ ERRERIHE AMRAEE B B TEEK
| | | | |
Linmark Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
ERERRES (Ev RERER
Linmark (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding and
WE(EB)BERAR B 28T procurement agent and

trading of merchandise

RARR  RERERERES

Linmark International (Bangladesh) ~ Bangladesh Taka4,120,000 - 100 Procurement agent
Ltd.- BN 4,120,000 REAE
Linmark International (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong HK$200,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Limited ) 200,0007% 7 procurement agent
WERER (F8)BRAR REZRRFERR
Linmark Merchandise Consultancy ~ People’s Republic of China  RMB1,500,000 - 100 Provision of marketing
(Shenzhen) Limited*** hEAREME AR 1,500,0007C consultancy and product
MEEmiEBH (RYI) development services
BRAR REmIS A R Em
R
Linmark Westman Investments British Virgin Islands US$11 - 100  Investment holding
Limited RBAARES NE RE#ER
Market Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Dormant
BRBRAT B 1AL EERH%
Merchandise Creative, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100  Dormant
RRAARES 1% EEEH%
Merchandise Creative Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
; 10,0007 7T BERK
Power Path Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Provision of secretarial and
EEERAR 7 i nominees services to the

fellow subsidiaries
BRZMBARRENER
REARS

BNRFREBBRAF (77
—T—tEFR

—=
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39. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 39. FEMBATFHE®
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

1 [ e Y
Percentage of

Nominal value equity attributable
of issued and to the Company
fully paid VNG|
Place of incorporation/ ordinary share/ ElERERD
Name registration and business registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ERTRAR
Bl EERRA
£ ERRERLE AMBRAEE B B TEEK
| | | | |
Shenzhen Guo Cai Sheng Tang People’s Republic of China  RMB10,000,000 - - Investment management
Investment Co. Ltd.#* hEARLAE AK#10,000,0007C (excluding trust, financial asset
FITRRREREEE management and securities
BRAR asset management
activities)

RAEE (TREEET
ERAEEEREFAEEE

#1)
Shenzhen Guo Zhi Dao New Energy ~ People’s Republic of China Nl - 51 Dormant
Vehicle Sales Services Co. Ltd 1 E AR HFE i EEX
RY|EL BRI B SHE RS
BRAR*
Shenzhen Sheng Yun Technology People’s Republic of China Nl - 100 Investment holding
Co. Ltd.** hEARLNE & REER
RYBERBERR A
Tamarind International Holdings British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited REBARRES (B REER
Tamarind International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding and
BE 187 trading of merchandise
REZRRERES
Tamarind Trading (Shanghai) People’s Republic of China  RMB5,500,000 = 100 Procurement agent and
Limited*** i AREME AR 5,500,0007C trading of merchandise
AEHES(L§) BRAR > RERELERE S
Tingo Consulting Company Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Money lending business
Limited" &% 1B BEHRER
RetEREERAR
Trend Xpress, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding and
REEMAKS 1% provision of market trend
consultancy services
RERRRRETS AR
EsRaAAMRE
Trend Xpress Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of market trend
B R AR AR B 28T consultancy services

RETSARE AR
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39.

40.

INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

A5 R AR BT =
30 April 2017
—tFMA=+H

39. EMBATFHE @

Percentage of

Nominal value equity attributable
of issued and to the Company
fully paid VNG|
Place of incorporation/ ordinary share/ ElERERD
Name registration and business  registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BRTRAR
B AV EERRE
£ EMRFHHE EMRAEE =83 Bl TEXH
1 e I Y
Westman Linmark (Thailand) Ltd. Thailand Ordinary shares - 100 Procurement agent
%E Baht 5,880,000 e
and preference
shares
Baht 6,120,000
EER
5,880,000 %47
REER
6,120,000%%k
Westman (Singapore) Private Singapore $$200,000 - 100 Procurement agent
Limited Gk 200,000 A3 7T R
Westown Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 = 100  Dormant
BHARAR BB 100,0007% 7T EEEHK

A 51% equity interest in Shenzhen Guo Zhi Dao New Energy Vehicle
Sales Services Co. Ltd. is indirectly-owned by the Company on 7
July 2016. The registered capital is RMB10,000,000 and the
registered capital has not yet been paid as at 30 April 2017.

S Linmark Merchandise Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited, Shengzhen
Sheng Yun Technology Co. Ltd. and Tamarind Trading (Shanghai)
Limited are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the law of the PRC.

Completed the acquisition of Tingo Consulting Company Limited
on 19 May 2016.

Disposed of a 60% equity interest in Shenzhen Guo Cai Sheng Tang
Investment Co. Ltd. on 15 August 2016.

Daohe Management Limited, a newly incorporated company,
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 8 February
2017.

AR

Shenzhen Sheng Yun Technology Co. Ltd. was incorporated on 21
April 2016. The registered capital is RMB10,000,000 and the
registered capital has not yet been paid as at 30 April 2017.

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 14 July 2017.

40.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFHMHBE

RESULTS ES
I Y D Y Y R D
Year ended 30 April
BENA=THLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

“E-=% ZE-mE ZZT-nfF T ZEF-tf

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000

TEn TET TET FTE=n TER
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

CEL) (=3 (& E5) (&=E7)
! ' - [ - [ - [ - [ ]

REVENUE 3 110,047 103,397 97,872 94,053 90,470
Cost of sales SHEMAR (82,459 (76,427) (72,879) (71,024) (68,851)
Gross profit 7 27,588 26,970 24,993 23,029 21,619
Other income Hipl A 1,023 1,346 977 639 272
General and administrative expenses  —fR RITHIF X (23,543) (23,329) (23,292) (22,285) (20,910)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB ARz Wz _ - _ _ 62
Expenses in relation to a proposed ~ —EABEZWESZE,

acquisition =53 - - = = (638)
Loss on deregistration of branches  BUE 9 A Al 2 g (193) - - - -
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries FHNBAR 2 BE = (138) - (5) -
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREESE - = = (887) -
Operating profit TR T 4,875 4,849 2,678 491 405
Interest income FIEMA 55 7 7 14 16
Share of loss of a joint venture EE—REERA EE (1) Q) - - -
Profit before tax B A A A 4,929 4,855 2,685 505 421
Income tax (expense)/credit FriER (Bx) /#K% 403 (399) (1,009) (1,118) (167)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to AR BIHEA AELEEE

owner of the Company ikl (B18) 5,332 4,456 1,676 (613) 254
Profit/(loss) for the year TIHALTELEE

attributable to: il (B18) :

Owners of the Company RNAERA 5,332 4,456 1,676 (560) 290

Non-controlling interests Eaillie iny = = = (53) (36)
Dividends IRE 2,459 1,942 1,069 681 626
Distribution vabie - 12,863 - - -
Eamings/(loss) per share (US cents) &k BH|, /(&) (L)

Basic* EA+ 1.6 1.3 0.5 (0.16) 0.08

Diluted* g 1.6 1.3 0.5 (0.16) 0.08
e Earnings per share for the years ended 30 April 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016~ * BE_ZT—=F -_F—NF —T-—HFK=FT—X

have been adjusted for the effect of Share Consolidation in September FUNA=ZTHIEFEZBRAFER-Z—"FNLAR
2016. DAEGTZEEL R -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFMBHE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
. ! | | | | | |
At 30 April
ROBE=+H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

—T—=F —T-NF —T-—HF T F ZE—tF
US$000 USs$'000 Us$000 US$'000 US$’000
FET FET FET FET FEx

(Restated)
(&=E3)
I I Y Y D D
Non-current assets ERBEE 27,488 26,895 26,773 27,522 29,767
Current assets REEE 33,937 23,820 24,585 32,358 29,599
Total assets BELE 61,425 50,715 51,358 59,880 59,366
Current liabilities nBaE (17,700) (16,993) (17,961) (18,424) (16,925)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE (979) (1,005) (809) (512) (1,781)
Total liabilities BERE (18,679) (17,998) (18,770) (18,936) (18,706)
Net assets BEFE 42,746 32,717 32,588 40,944 40,660
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Corporate Information
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ZHOU Xijian (Chairman)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ZHANG Qi (Chief Executive Officer)

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (President)

ZHANG Jifeng (appointed on 11 January 2017)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WANG Arthur Minshiang
LAU Shu Yan (appointed on 11 January 2017)
ZHANG Huijun (appointed on 11 January 2017)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
ZHANG Qi (Chairman of the Committee)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

ZHANG Jifeng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

LAU Shu Yan (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

ZHANG Huijun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

WANG Arthur Minshiang (Chairman of the Committee)
ZHANG Qi

ZHANG Huijun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
ZHOU Xijian (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

ZHANG Huijun

COMPANY SECRETARY
WONG Lim Yam
(appointed on 11 January 2017)
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Suites 1908-12, 19/F., Shui On Centre,

6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
(formerly: Codan Services Limited)
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

22nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue,
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Level 10, HSBC Main Building,

1 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
13th Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building,
4-4A Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Citibank, N.A.
48th Floor, Citibank Tower, Citibank Plaza,
3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong
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Shareholder Information

AR A

Listing Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 10 May 2002
Stock Code : 915
Board Lot : 1,000 (with effect from 27 September 2016)
Par Value : US$0.04 (with effect from 27 September 2016)
Trading Currency  :  HK$

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2017

Financial year ended

Full year results announced

Register of members closed
(for ascertaining shareholders’ rights to
attend and vote at AGM)

AGM

Interim results to be announced

30 April 2017
14 July 2017

18-23 August 2017
30 August 2017
mid of December 2017*

* subject to change

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 30 April 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the purpose of ascertaining the shareholders’ rights of attending and
voting at the forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Friday, 18 August 2017 to Wednesday, 23 August 2017,
both days inclusive. In order to be entitled to attend the AGM, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company, Tricor
Standard Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 17 August 2016.

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile: (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong branch share
registrar promptly of any change of addresses.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Daohe Global Group Limited
Suites 1908-12, 19/F., Shui On Centre,
6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2753 7373

Facsimile: (852) 2721 6554

Email: ir@daoheglobal.com.hk
Website: www.daoheglobal.com.hk
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